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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
FOR THE CENTRAL DISTRICT OF CALIFORNIA

Japuary 2015 Grand Jury

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA, | CR No. Ejfz jﬁf; (} {353??53

Plaintifz, INDICIMENT
V. [18 U.S.C. § 1347: Hedalth Caxe
: Fraudy; 42 U.5.C. §§ 1320a~-
JOSEFF SALES, Thib) (1) (A), (b){(2){a): Illegal
DANNIEL GOYENA, and - Remunerations for Health Care
DAVID Y. KIM, Refsrrals; 18 U.S5.C,
. § 1028A(a) (1) : Aggravated Identity
Dafendants. Theft; 18 U.5.C. § 2{b}: Causing
arl Act to be Done]

The Grand Jury charges:
COUNTS ONE THROUGH TWELVE
[iB U.S8.¢. 8§ 1347, 2(b)]
[21) Defendants])

A. INTRODUCTORY ALLEGATIONS

At all times relevant to this Indictment:

The‘D&fendants

1. Defendant JOSEFF SALES (“defendant SALES”) was a resident
of Buena Park, California, within the Central District of Califorxnia.
Dafercant SALES was a physical therapist (*PT”) licensed to practice

in California and an enrolled Medicare provider.
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2. Defendant DANNIEL GOYENA (“*defendant GOYENA") was a
resident of Buena Park, California, within the Central District of
California. Defendant GOYENA was a physical therapist assigtant
(*PTA"). licensed to practice in Californiaé

3. At various times from in or about March 2008 to in or about
January 2014, defendants SALES and GOYENA owned and operated Rehab

Dynamics, Inc. (“Rehab Dynamics”), RS8G Rehab, Inc. (*RSG”), and

Innovation Physical Therapy, Inc. (“Immovation”), California

corporations, which were located at various sites in Los Angeles and
OrangaZCOunties; within the Central District of California.

4. A bank account for Rehab Dynamics was maintained at J.P.

Morgan Chase Bank, N.A., with account number ending in 5060 (the

"Rehab Dynamics Bank Account”). The bank accounts for RSG were
maintained at J.P. Morgan Chase Bank, N.A., with accéunt numbers
ending in 5234, 2189, and 2698 (the "“RSG Bank Accounts”)

regpectively. A bank account for Innovation was maintained at J.P.

Morgan Chase Bank, N.A., with account number ending in 2966 (the

YInnevation Bank Account”) .

5.  Defendant DAVID Y. KIM {“*defendant KIM”) was a resident of

Log Angeles, California, within the Central District of California.

befendant KIM was a licensed chiropractor, but he was not a
physician, PT, or PTA licensed to practice in California, and he was
not enrolled as a Medicgare provider.

6. From in or about November 2011 and econtiruing through in or
about January 2014, defendant kIM owned and operated New Hope Clinic
("New Hope”), a California sole propristorship, located at vérious
locations in Los Angeles County, within the Central District of
California. Defendant KIM, through New Hope, received payments from

2
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defendants SALES and GOYENA, through Rehab Dynamics and Innovation,

| foxr referrals and for alleged physical therapy services.

The Medicare Program

7. Medicare was = federal health care benefit prodgram,

affectirig commerce, that provided benefits to individuals whd were
over the age of 65 or disabled. Medicare was administered by the
Centexrs for Medicare and Medicaid Services (“CMS”), a federal agency
operating under the authority of the United States Department of

Health and Humarn Services (“HHS*).

8. Individuals who cualified for Medicare benefits were

referred to as Madicare “beneficiaries.” Each Medicare beneficiary
was given a Health Identification Card containing a unigue

identification numbar (“HICN”).

9. Health care providers who provided medical services that

were reimbursed by Medicare were referred to as Medicare “providers.”

10. ¢MS$ contracted with private companies to certify providers

for participation in the Medicare program and monitor their
compliance with Medicare standards, to process and pay claims, and to
perform program safeguard functions, such as identifying and

reviewing suspect claims.

11. To obtain reimbursement from Medicare, a provider had to

apply for and obtain a provider number. By signing the provider
application, the provider agreed to (a) abide hy Medicare rules and
regulations and (k) not submit claims to Medicare knowing they were
falge or fraudulent or with deliberate ignorance or reckless

disregard of their truth or Falsity.

12. If Medicare approved a provider’s application, Medicare

assigned the provider a Medicare provider number, which enabled the

3
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provider to submit claims to Medicare for services rendersed to
Medicare beneficiaries.

13, Medicare reimbursed providers only for services, including
physical therapy, that were medically necessary to the treatment of a
beneficiary’'s illness or injury, were prescribed by a beneficiary’s
physician or a gualified physician’s assistant acting under the
supervision of a physician, and were provided in accordance with
Medlcare regulations and guidelines that governed whether a
particular service or product would be reimbursed by Medicare.

14, Medicare required that physical therapy services be

performed by (a) a physician, (b) a PT, or (¢) a PTA acting under the

direct supervision of a physician or PT. “Direct supervision” meant
that the doctor or PT waﬁ-physicaliy present in the same office suite
and immediately available to provide agsistance and direction
throughout the time the PTA was performing physical therapy services.
Physical therapy services provided by aides or physical therapy
students were not reimbursable by Medicare, regardless of the level
of supervision.

15. Medivcare did not cover acupuncture or reimburse pravidexs
for acupuncture services. Medicare did not cover massages unless
they were therapeutic massages provided by a licensed theraﬁist as
part of the beneficiary’s plan of care.

B. - THE SCHEME TO DEFRAUD

16. Beginning in or about March 2008, and continuing until at
least in or about January 2014, in Los Angeles and Orange Counties,
within the Central District of California, dnd elsewhere, defendants
SALES and GOYENA, and co-schemer Marlon Songco, together with others
known and unknown to the Grand Jury and, independently, with each of:

4
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(a) defendant KIM from in or about March 2012 to in or about January
2014; (k) co-schemer Leovigildo Sayat from in or zbout March 2008 to
in or about May 2012; (c) co~schemer Ohun Kwon from in or about July
2009 to in or about July 2011; and (d) co-schemer Eddieson Legaspi
from in or about April 2008 to in or about December 2012, knowingly,
-willfu11y, and with the intent to defraud, executed and attempted to
execute a scheme and artifice: (1) to defraud a health care benefit
program, namely, Medicare, as to material matters in connection with
the delivery of and payment for health care baﬁafits, items, and
services; and (2} to obtain money from Medicare by means of material
falsa and frauvdulent pretenses and representations and ths |
concealment of material facts in connection with the delivery of and

payment for health care benefits, items, and services.

C. THE FRAUDULENT SCHEME
17. The fraudulent scheme operated, in substance, in the
following manner: ’

a. Defendants SALES and GOYENA obtained and caused to be
obtained Medicare provider numbers for Rehab Dynamics, RSG, and
Innovation, thus enabling Rehab Dyndmics, RSG, and Innovation to
submit claeims to Medicare. |

b. Defendants SALES and GOYENA recruilted defendant KIM
and others at various clinics, including but not limited to New Hope,
Hong's Medical Management, Inc. {“Hong's Medical”), BE.X. Medical
Management, Inc. (“E.K. Medical”), and Glory Rehal Team, Inc. (“Glory
Rehab”), to solicit Medicare beneficlaries to receive physical
therapy serviceé.

¢, Defendant KIM and others recruited Medicare
beneficiaries to their respective c¢linics. The Medicare

S
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beneficiaries supplied their Medicare cards, HICNs, and patient

information to theé clinics, and defendant XKIM and others subsequently

| provided this information to defendants SALES and GOYENA at Rehab

Dynamics, RSG, and Innovation. 7

d. Defendants SALES and GOYENA hired 1icensed‘physical
therapists to perform patient evaluations and re-evaluations for
Medicare beneficiaries at these various clinics.

e. Ag defendants SALES and GOYENA knew: (i) the licensed
physical therapists evaluated, re-evaluated, and created physical
therapy treatment plans for only some, not all, of the beneficiaries;

and (ii) even for those beneficiaries for whom physical therapy

treatment plans were creabed, many of the beneficiaries never

received any follow-up physical therapy services.

£, While at these various clinics, beneficiaries would
often receive ohly‘massageuand acupuncture (services defendant SALES,
defendant GOYENA, defendant KIM and other co-schemers knew were nob

covered by Medicare) from individuals not licensed to perform

physical therapy .

. In particular, as defendant KIM knew, defendants SALES

and GOYENA hired licensed physical therapists to occasionally

pupervise deferidant KIM's unlicensed staff, who performed services
for Medicare beneficiaries at New Hope that were not reimbursable
under Medicare guidelines. Nevertheless, as defendant KIM knew,
defendants SALES and GOYENA used Accubill Medical Billing Services
{(*accubill”) to submit claims to Medicare for reimbursement for
physical therapy services for these beneficiaries, despite their

having received other non-reimbursable services.
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h. Defendants SALES, GOYENA, and KIM, and others,
provided information to Accubill, including the names, HICNs, and
other patient information of the Medicare beneficiaries, as well as
Falgified records that made it appear as though the beneficiaries had
recelved physical therapy treatments from specific PTs hired by Rehab

Dynamics, RSG, and Innovation, knowing and intending that Accubill

would use this falsified information to submit false and fraudulent

¢laimg to Medicare.

i. Defendants SALES, GOYENA, and KIM, and others,
gubmitted to Accubill the names and‘pxévidar numbers of specific PTs
who purportedly performed the physical therapy services referenced in

the claims to Medicare, even though, as defendants SALES, GOYENA, and

KIM well knew, the PTs could not posgibly have performed the physical

therapy services because the PTs were almost always not present at

the clinics where the purported services occurred.

j.  Rehab Dynamics, RSG, and Innovation received payment
from Medicare for those false and fraudulent claims, and the payments
were deposited into the Rehab Dynamics Bank Account, the RSG Bank
Aceounts, and the Innovation Bank Account, to which defendants SALES
and GOYENA had joint access and control,

k. Defendants SALES and GOYENA wrote checks out of the
Rehab Dynamics Bank Account, the RSG Bank Accounts, and the
Innovation Bank Account to themselves and others.

1. Defendants SALES and GOYENA paid kickbacks to
defendant KIM and others at these various clinics from the Medicare
payments, in exchange for the referral of these Medicare

beneficiaries to Rehab Dynamics, RSG, and Innovation.
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m. Between iﬁ or about March 2008 and in or about January
2014, Rehab Dynamics, R8G, and Innovation submitted approximately
$15.2 million in fraudulent and improper c¢laims to Medicare,
primarily for physical therapy, and obtained payment from Medicare of
appréximately 7.8 million for physical therapy services purportedly
performed at various clinicse

n. Defendant KIM received approximately 55 pexcent of the
Medicare payments for the patients who purportedly received physical
therapy services at New Hope. These Medicare payments were depogited
into the Rehab Dynanmics Bank Account and the Innovation Bank Accournt
by defendants SALES and GOYENA, and others on hehalf of beneficiaries
at New Hope, as payment for the beneficiaries who defendant KIM
recruited to New Hope and for the submission of frauduleht and |
improper claims to Medicare, |

o. Bpecifically, between in or about Maxrch 2012 and in or

about January 2014, Rehab Dynamics and Tnnovation received

approximately $6%0,519.03 in péyments from Medicare From Ffraudulent
claimg submitted to Medicare, on behalf of beneficiaries at New Hope
recruited by defendant KIM, which were deposited into the Rehab
Dynamics Bank Account and Innovation Bank Account. Defendant KIM,
through New Hope, received approximately $379,785.47 from Rehab
Dynamics and Innovation for defendant KIM’s participation in the
gscheme, including providing the fraudulent and improper claim
information to defendants SALES and GOYENA, and others at Rehab

Dynamics and Imnovation, that was submitted to Medicare.

D.  EXECUTIONS OF THE FRAUDULENT SCHEME
8. On or about the‘dates set forth below, within the Central
District of California, and elsewhere, the following defendants,

B
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together with othexs known and unknown to the Grand Jury, for the

purpose of executing and attempting to execute the fraudulent scheme

described above, knowingly and willfully submitted and caused to be

submitted to Medicare the following false and fraudulent claims:

COumT

DEFENDANT

APPROX.
UATE
ALLEGED
SERVICES
PERFORMED

ARPROX.
DATE CLATM
BUBMITTED

HENBFLCIARY,
PHYSICAL
"THERAPIBT,

ARD SERVICE
{CODE)

ANOURNT
CLATHMED

CLAIM NUMBER

ONE

SALES,
GOYENA

11/23/2010

1271/2610

B.XK.,
SALBS,
Therapeutic
activities
{97530)

545,00

B551110335635200

l

SBLEE,
GOYENA

12/8/2011

12/21/2011

ALK,
S8ALES,
Physical
Therapy
Bvaluation
{2700L)

$100.00

BE1111385341260

SALEE,

GOYENA

1/3/2012

1/x9/2012

Tx.®.,

L. Sayat,
Therapeutic
BExarcise
{97110)

580.00

| 5E1912023188920

BALES,
GOYENA

1/3/2012

1/18/2012

H.P.,

L. 8Sayat,
Therapeutic
Exarglae
{97110)

$80.00

561912023186910

FIVE

BALES,
GOYENA

3/7/204%

3fle/e012

P.M.,
Legaspi,
Therapeutic
Procedure
{97112)

545,00

5515120741.02540

BIX

BALES,.
GOYENA

1. a/26/2012

8/10/2012

J.K.,
Legaspl,
Manual
Ehyaical
Therapy
{97140)

$40,00

EE1R131311689160

SEVEN

| saLES,

GOYENA,
KIM

s/12/2012

afia/2002

5.C.,

g W,
Therapsutle
Procadure
(87112)

§50.00

EBLBL22683472200

ELIGHT

SALES,
GOYENA

1i/22/2012

11/29/2012

A.C.,
M.B..
Marmial
Bhysical
Therapy
{97140)

580,00

551812334592110
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NITNB saLEs, 11/8/201% 12/3/2012 | K.L., SB0. 60 §§1112339006223
SOYENA, J.W.,
KIM Therapeutic
| Exercise
_ {97110) _
TEN SALRSG, 3/i8/201% | 3/28/2013 | K.K., $45.00 | 5S18L3087337560
GOYENA, J.w.,
KIM Therapautic
Procedure
{97113) ;
ELEVEN SALES, 3/20/2013 3/28/2013 | K. K., 580.00 551813087337560
GOYENA., J.W.,
KiMm Mamual
Phyaical
Thexrapy
| (87140)
TWELVE BALES, 172472013 7/30/2013 1 J.2., 5B0.00 | S51813211436860
GOVENA M B,
ThHerapeutis
Exerclse
{97130

e e T

10
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herein.

15.

20.

COUNTS THIRTEEN THROUGH TWENTY-FIVE

[42 U.8.C. § 1320a~7b{k) (2) {A)]

The Grand Jury hereby repeats and realleges paragraphs 1

through 15 and paragraph 17 of this Indictwment as if fully set forth

On or about the dates set forth below, in Los Angeles and

Orange Countiés, within the Central District of California, and

elgewhere, the following defendants, together with others known and
unknown to the Grand Jury, knowingly and willfully offered and paid
! remuneration, namely, checks payable in the approximate amounts set
‘forth'balow, to induce David Y. Kim and others to xefer individualg

to Rehab Dynamics, RSG, and Imnovation for physical therapy-related

services, for which payment could be made in whole and in part under

a Federal health care program, namely, Medicare:

DEFENDANT

APEROX. DATE

TRANGACTION

GOYENA

4/13/23011

Check’nuhﬁer 1266, drawn on the RSG

Bank Accounts, in the amount of

§8,769.11, payable to Glory Rehab

COUNT
THIRTEEN
FOURTEEN

GOYENA

/1172011

Check number 1318, drawn on the RSG
Bank Accounts, in the amount of
$2,184.25, payable to Hong's Medical

\IFIFTEEN

SALES

16/16/2013

Chack number 1786, drawn on the Rehab
Dynandes Bank Account, ln the amount of

| 810,119,084, payable to Hong's Medicsl

SALES

3/16/2012

Check number 2013, drawn on the R5G

Bank Accounts, iy the amount of

$4,456.46, payable to BE.E. Medical

SIXTEEN
SEVENTEEN

SALES

4/23/2012

Check numbery 2086, drawn on the RBG
Bank Accounts, in the amoung of
53,082.54, payable to E.K. Medical

EIGHTEEN

SALES

472472012

theck number 2082, drawn on the RSG
Bank Accounts, in the amount of
4$2,975,97, payable to Glory Rehab

NINETEEN

| GOYENA

1271373018

Check rumber 1706, drawn on the
Innovation Bank Account, in the amount
of §2,595,.69, payable o E.K, Medical

TWENTY

“GOYENA

473173013

Check number 1838, drawn on the
Innovation Bank Account, in the amount
of §7,210.90, paable to New Hope

TWNTY-ONE

GOYENA

473072013

Chegk numbei 1864, drawn on the
Inngvatlon Bank Account, in the amount
of $5,50?579{-payable to B,K, Medical

11
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THERTY-TWO | GOYENA

§/13720613

Check number 1876, drawid on the
Innovration Bank Account, in the amount
of $1,822.70, payable to E.K. Medical]

TWENTY - THREE GOYENA

11/5./2613

| Cheek number 2084, drawn on the
Innovation Bank Account, in the amount
of %$2,547.36, payable Lo E.K, Medical

TWENIY-FOUR | BALES

1n/6/2013

Check number 2622, drawn dn the Rehab
Dynamice Bank Account, in the amount of
§2,391.60, payable to New Hope

TWENTY- FIVE SALES

1i/12/2013

Check number 2092, drawn on the
Innovation Bank Account, in the amount
of $2,791.26, payable to F.K. Medical

12
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1 COUNTS TWENTY-SIX THROUGH THIRTY
2 | {42 U.8.C. § 1320a-7b(b) (1} (B}]
3 21, The Grand Jury hereby repeats and realleges paragraphs 1

4 | through 15 and paragraph 17 of this Indictment as if fully set forth
5 Fherein; A

6 22, On or about the dates set forth below, in Los Angeles

7 | County, witﬁin the Central District of California, and elsewhere,

8 E'r.':lef-em';‘lant: KIM, together with others known and unknown to the Grand
9 || Jury, kaowingly and willﬁully-soliCited'énd received remuneration,
10 [|namely, checks payable in the approximate amounts set forth below,
11 drawn.en the Rehab Dynanics Bank Account and the Innovation RBank
12 ||Aceount, in return for referring individuals to Rehab Dynamics and
13 || Innovation for physical therapy-related services, for which paywent

14 jcould be made in whole and in part under a Federal health care

15 | program; namely, Medicare:

16
17 COUNT AYPPROX. DATE _ TRANSACTION
18 (| TWENTY-S5IX 4/11/2013 Check number 1838, drawn on the Innovation
Bank Acvcount, 1in the amount of $7,.210,%0,
18 payable to New Hope
PWENTY - SEVEN §/8/2013 Check number 1873, drawn on the Innovakion
20 Bank Acdount, in the amount of %$4,223.28,
payable to New Hope
51 [ TWENTY-BIGHT | 6/15/2013 Sheck nomber 1919, drawn off the Innovation
' Bank Accdount, in the amount of §2,500,00,
22 payable to New Hope
| TWENTY-NINE 11/86/2013 Check number 2622, drawn on the Rehab
27 Dynamics Bank Account, in the amount of
§2,3581.60, payable to New Hope
24 THIRTY 1/2/2014 Cheok number 2646, drawn on the Rehab
' Pymamics Bank Account, in the amount of
o5 $2,172.06, pavable to New Hope
26
27
28

13
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COUNTS THIRTY-ONE THROUGH THIRTY-FOUR
(42 U.8.C. §8 1028A(a) (1), R(b}]
23. The Grand Jury hereby repeats and realleges paragraphs 1
I'through 15 and paragraph 17 of this Indictment as if fully set forth
herein.
24. On or about the dates set forth below, in Los Angeles
County, within the Central.Distﬁict of California, the following

defendants, together with others known and unknown to the Grand Jury,

knowingly transferred, possessed, and used, and willfully caused to

be transferred, possegged, and used, without lawful authority, means
of identification of other persons, namely, the names and Medicare

provider numbers of the physical therapists identified below, during

lland in relation to felony violations of Title 18, United States Code,

Section 1347, as charged in the related counts of the Indictment

identified below:

COURT _ DRFENDANT - APPROX. DATE | PHYSICAL RELATED COURT

: THERAPLST OF INDICTMENT
{PROVIDER NO.} '
AND SERVICE
{CODE)

THLRTDY -ONE HZOYENA 12/1./20L0 BaLEs COUNT ONE
{axsewssRi6) ~
Therapeutic
Aotivities
{97530) -

THIRTY «TWO GOYENA 12/21/2011 SALES COUNT TWO
{exuxx993g) -
Fhygical Therapy
Evaluation
{97001)

THIRTY-THREE SALES 1L/19/2012 L. Sayat COUNT THRER
' {xoexxx0873) ~
Therapeutic
Exereise
(27110)

THIRTY-FOUR SRLES 1/18/2015 L. Bayat ' COUNT FOUR
(exxaxx0573) -
Therapeutic
Exercise
{97110}

14
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COUNTS THIRTY~FIVE THROUGH THIRTY-SIX
(42 U.B.C. 8§ 1028A(a) {1}, 2(b)]

25, The Grand Jury hereby repeats and realleges paragraphs 1
through 15 and paragraph 17 of this Indictment as if fully set forth
herein.

26. On or about the dates set forth below, in Los Angeles
County, within the Central District of California, defendant KIM,
together with others known and unknown to the Grand Jury, knowingly
transferred, possessed, and used, and willfully caused‘tq be
transferred, possessed, and used, without lawful authority, means of
identification of other persons, namely, the names and HICNs of the

beneficiaries identified below, during and in relation to felony

violations of Title 18, United States Code, Section 1347, as charged

in the related counts of the Indicbtment identified below.

A/

//

15
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Therapeutic Procedure
{97112}

COUNT APPROX, DATE BENEFICIARY (HIUN) AND RELATED COUNT OF
SERVICE (CODE) INDICTMENT
THIRTY~FIVE 12/3/2012 K.L, (oomesosm) - COUNT NINE
' Therapeutic Exercise
{97110)
TPHIRTY-SIX A/28/2013 TRGE, [kxxx32128) - COUNT TEN

EILEEN M, DECKER
Inited States Attorney

" ~TAWRENCE S, MIDDLETON
Aggistant United States Attorney
Chief, Criminal Division

GEORGE 8. CARDONA
Assistant United States Attorney
Chief, Major Frauds Section

STEPHEN A. CAZARES
Aggigtant United States Attorney
Deputy Chief, Major Frauds Section

BYRON J. MCLAIN
Assistant United States Attorney

Majeor Frauds Sectilon

A TRUE BILL

/5/

Foreperson

16
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EILEEN M. DECKER
United States Attorney
ROBERT E. DUGDALE
Asgistant Unlted States Attorney
Chief, Criminal Divisilon
BYRON J. MCLAIN (Cal., Bar No. 257191)
Asgistant Unilted States Attorney
Major Frauds Section
1100 United States Courthouse
312 North Spring Street
Los Angeles, California 90012
Telephone: (213) 894-0637
Facgimile: (213) 894-6269
E-mall: byron.mclain@usdo].gov

Attorneys for Plaintiff
UNITED STATES OF AMERICA

UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
FOR THE CENTRAL DISTRICT OF CALIFORNIA .

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA, No. CR 15-576-DDP (2)

Plaintiff, PLEA AGREEMENT FOR DEFENDANT
DANNIEL GOYENA

v.
DANNTEL GOYENA,

Defendant.

1. Thig constitutes the plea agreement between DANNIEL GOYENA
(*defendant”) and the United States Attorney’s Office for the Central
Digtrict of California (“the USAO”) in the above-captioned case.

This agreement is limited to the USAO and cannot bind any other
federal, state, local, or foreign prosecuting, enforcemeint,
administrative,tor regulatory authorities,

DEFENDANT' S OBLIGATIONS

2. Defendant agrees to:
a. At the earliest opportunity requested by the USAO and
provided by the Court, appear and plead guilty to counts two and

fourteen of the indictment in United States v, Jogeff Sales, et. al.,
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CR No. 15-576~DDP(2), which charges defendant with Health Care Fraud,
in violation of 18 U.8.C. § 1347 and Illegal Remunerationsg for Health
Care Referralg (payment of illegal kickbackg), in violation of 42
'U.8.c. § 1320(a)-Th(b) (2) (A).

b, Not contest facts agreed to in this agreement.

c. Abide by all agreements regarding sentencing contained

in this agreement.

d, Appear for all court appearances, surrender as ordered

for mervice of sentence, obey all conditions of any bond, and obey
any other ongoing court order in this matter.

e. Not commiit any crime; however, offenses that would be
excluded for sentencing purposes under United States Sentencing
Guidelines (MU.8.8.G." or “Sentencing Guidelinesg”) § 4A1.2(¢) are not
within the scope of this agreement.

£, Be truthful at all times with Pretrial Services, the
United States Probation Office, and the Court.

g. Pay the applicable special ﬁssessments at or before
the time of sentencing unlege defendant lacks the ability to pay and
prior to sentencing submits a completed financial gtatement on a form
to be provided by the USAO,

h, Not geek the dischavge of any regtitution obligation,
in whole or in part, in any present or future bankruptcy proceeding.

i, Defendant understands and acknowledges that as a
result of pleading gullty pursuant to this agreement, defendant will
be excluded from Medicare, Medicald, and all Federal health care
programs. Defendant agrees to complete and execute all necessary
documents provided by the United States Department of Health and
Human Services, or any other department or agency of the federal

2
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government, to effectuate this ekclusion within 60 days of recelving
the documents. This exclusion will not affect defendant’s right to
apply for and receive benefits as a beneficiary under any Pederal
health care program, including Medicare and Medicaid.

3. Defendant further agrees;

a. | To stipulate to the revocation of.defendant's phyelcal
therapy assistant license and ghall lose all rights and privileges as
a licensed physical therapy assistant in California;

b. To not apply for licensure or petition for
reinstatement of defendant’s revoked physical therapy assigtant
licensge for at least five years from the effective date of the

revocation; and

a. That upon the effective date of the license

| vrevocation, the defendant shall be prohibited from engaging, eithex

directly or indirectly, in any activity for which a physical therapy

aggistant licensge ilg required.

4. Defendant Ffurther agrees to cooperate fully with the USAO,
the Federal Bureau of Invegtigation, Department of Health and Human
Serviceg - Office of the Inspector General, and, ag directed by the
USAO, any other federal, state, local, 6r foreign prosecuting,
enforcement, adminigtrative, or regulatory authority. This
cooperation requires defendant to: |

a. Respond truthfully and completely to all gquestilong
that may be put to defendant, whether in interviews, before a grand
jury, or at any trial or other court proceeding.

b. Attend all meetings, grand jury sgessions, trials or
other proceedings at which defendant’s presence ig requested by the
USAO or compelled by subpoena or court prder.

3
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¢.  Produce voluntarily all documents, recoxds, or other
tangible evidence relating to matters about which the USAO, or its
degignee, inguires.

5. For purposes of this agreement: (1) “Cooperation
Information” shall mean any statements made, or documents, records,
tangible evidence, or other information providéd, by defendant
pursuant to defendant’s cooperation under this agreement; and
(2) “Plea Information” shall mean any statements made by defendant,
under oath, at the guilty plea hearing and the agreed to factual
basles statement in thils agreement,

THE USAC’S CEBLIGATIONS

6. The USAC agreesg to:

a. Not contest facts agreed to in this agreement.

b. Abide by all agreements regarding sentencing contained
in this agreement,

a. At the time of sentencing, move to dismigs the
remalning counte of the indictment as against defendant. Defendant
agrees, however, that at the time of sentencing the Court may
consider any dismissed charges in determining the applicable
Sentencing Guidelines range, the propriety and extent of any
departure from that range, and the gentence. to be imposged.

a. At the time of sentencing, provided that defendant
demongtrates an'accéptance of respongibility for the offenses up to
and including the time of gentencing, recommend a two-level reduction
in the applicable Sentencing Guidelines offensge level, pursuant to
U.8.8.G, § 3EL.1, and recommend and, 1f necessary, move for an

additional one-level reduction 1LFf available under that section,
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e, Recommend that defendant be gsentenced to a term of
lmprisonment no higher than the low end of the appllcable Sentencing
Guidelines range, provided that the offense level used by the Court
to determine that range lg 26 or higher and provided that the Court
does not depart downward in offense level or criminal hlstory
category. For purposes of thile agreement, the low end of the
Sentencing Guidelines range is that defined by the Bentencing Table
in U.8.8.@. Chapter 5, Part A, |

7. The USAO further agrees:

a. Not to offer as evidence in its case-in~chlef in the

above-captioned case or any other criminal prosecution that may be
brought agaiﬁst defendant by the USAO, or in connection with any
sentencing proceeding in any criminal case that may be brought
against defendant by the USAO, any Cooperation Information.

Defendant agrees, however, that the USAO may use both Cooperation
Information and Plea Information: (1} to obtain and pursue leads to
other evidence, which evidence may be used for any purpose, including
any criminal prosecution of defendant; (2) to cross-examine defendant
should defendant tegtify, or to rebut any evidence offered, or
argument or representation made, by defendant, defendant’s counsgel,
or a witness called by defendant in any trial, sentencing hearing, or
other court proceeding; and (3) in any criminal prosecution of
defendant for false statement, cbstruction of justice, or perjury.

b, Not to use Cooperation Information againsgt defendant
at sentencing for the purpose of determining the applicable gquideline
range, including the appropriateness of an upward departure, or the
sentence to be imposed, and to recommend to the Court that
Cooperation Information not be used in determining the applicable

5
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guideline range or the sentence to be imposed. Defendant
understands, however, that Coopsration Information will be disclosed
to the probation office and the Court, and that the Court may use
Cooperation Information for the purposes get forth in U.8.8.d,

§ 1BL.8(b) and for determining the sentence to be imposged.

c. In connection with defendant’s sentencing, to bring to
the Court’s attention the nature and extent of defendant’s
cooperation,

d. If the USAO determines, in its exclugive judgment,
that defendant has both complied with defendant’s obligations under
paragraphs 2, 3, and 4 above and provided substantial assistance to
law enforcement in the prosecutilon or investigation of another
(*aubstantial assistance”), to move the Court pursuant to U,S.8.G,
§ BRKL.1 to fix an offénse level and corresponding guideline range
below Ehat otherwise dictated by the gentencing gquidelines, and to
recommend a term of imprisonment within this reduced range.

DEFENDANT'S UNDERSTANDINGS REGARDING COOPERATION

8. Defendant undergtands the following:

a. Any knowingly false or misleading statement by
defendant will subject defendant to prosecution for false statement,
obstruction of justice, and perjury and will.constitute a breach by
defendant of this agreement.

b, Nothing in this agreement requires the USAO or any
other progecuting, enforcement, adminilstrative, or regulatory
authority to accept any ccoperation or assistance that defendant may
offer, or toc use it in any particular way.

c, Defendant camnot withdraw defendant’s guilty pleas if
the USAO does not make a motion pursuant to U,8.8.G. § 5KL.1l for a

)
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reduced guideline range or if the USAO makes such a motion and the
Court does not grant it or if the Court grants such a USAO motion but
elects to sentence above the reduced range.

d. At thip time the USAO makes no agreement or
represéntation ag to whether any cooperation that defendant has
provided or intends to provide constitutes or will constitute

gubstantial assistance. The decision whether defendant has provided

subgtantial assistance will rest solely within the exclusive judgment

of the USAO. .
e, The USAQ's determination whether defendant'has

provided substantial asgistance will not depend in any way on whether
the government prevails at any trial or court hearing in which
defendant testifies or in which the governmment otherwise presente
information resulting from defendant’s cooperation.

NATURE OF THE OFFENSES

g, Defendant understands that for defendant to be guilty of
the'crime charged in count two, that is, Health Care Fraud, in
violation of Title 18, United States Code, Sectilon 1347,_the
following must be true:

First, defendant knowingly and willfully participated in or
devised a scheme or plan to defraud a health care benefit program, or
a schame or plan for obtalning money or property owned by, or under
the custody oxr control of, any health care benefit program, by means
of false or fraudulent pretenses, representations, or promises;

gecond, statements made or £facts ohitted ag part of the sgcheme
were material; that ig, they had a natural tendency td influence, or
were capable of influencing, the health care benefit program to part

with money or property;
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Third, defendant acted with the intent to defraud; that 1ls, the
intent to deceive or cheat; and ‘

Fourth, the.scheme involved the delivery of or payment for
health care benefits, ltems, or services.

10, Defendant undergtands that for defendant to Se gullty of
the crime charged in count fourteen, that ig, Iilegal Remunerations
for Health Care Referrals, in violation of Title 42, United States
Code, Section 1320a-7b{b) (2) (A}, the following must be true:

First, defendant offered or paid remuneration in cash or kind to
a person;

Second, defendant offered or pald the remuneration to induce the
pergon to refer an individual for the furnlshing of a service for
which payment may be made under a federal health care program; and

Third, the defendant made the offer or payment knowlngly and
wlllingly.

PENALTIES AND RESTITUTICN

11, Defendant understands that the statutory maximum sentence
that the Court can impose for a violation of Title 18, United States
Code, Sectlon 1347, is: 10 years imprisonment; a 3-year period of
superviged release; a fine of 250,000 or twice the gross gain or
grogs logs regulting from the offenge, whichever is greatept; and a
mandatory special assesgment of $100.

12, Defendant understands that the statutory maximum sentence
that the Court can ilmpose for a violation of Title 42, United States
Code, Section 1320a-7b{b) (2) (3) ig: 5 years imprisonment; a 3-year
period of supervised release; a f£ine of $250,000 oxr twice the gross
gain or grose loss resulting from the offense, whichever is greatest;
and a mandatory specilal aggessment of $100,

8
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13, Defendant underptands, therefore, that the total maximum
gentence for all coffenses to which defendant is pleading gullty is:
15 years lmprisonment; a 3-year perlod of supervised release; a fine
of $500,000 or twice the gross gain or gross logs reéulting from the
of fenses, whichevér is‘greatest; and a mandatory specilal asgessment
of $200, |

14, Defendant understands that defendant will be required to
pay full restitution to the victim of the offenses to which defendant
ig pleading guilty. Defendant agrees that, in return for the USAO’s
compliance with its obligations under this agreement, the Court may
order restitution to persons other than the victim of the offenses to
which defdndant 1s pleading guilty and in amounts greater than those
alleged in the counts to which defendant 18 pleading guilty. In
particular, defendant agrees that the Court may order restitutioﬁ to
any victim of any of the following for any losses suffered by that
victim ag a result of: (a) any relevant conduct, as defined. in
U.8.8.6. § 1B1.3, in connection with the offenses to which defendant
ig pleading guilty; and (b) any counts dismissed pursuant to this
agreement as well as all relevant conduct, as defined in U.8.85.G.

§ 1B1.3, in connection with those countsg, The parties currently
believe that the applicable amount of restitution ls approximately
$7,896,007, but recogrilze and agree that this amount could change
based on facts that come to the attention of the parties prior to
asentencing.

15, Deféndant understandsg that supetvised release is a period
of time following imprisonment during which defendant will be subject
to various restrictions and reqguirements. Defendant understands that
if defendant violates one or more of the conditions of any supervised

9
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I

release imposed, defendant may be returned to prison for all or part

of the term of supervised release agthorized by statute for the
offense that resulted in the term of supervised releasge, which could
result in defendant serving a total term of ilmprisonment greater than
the gtatutory maximum stated shove.

16, Defendant understands that, by pleading gullty, defendant
may be gilving up valuable government benefits and valuable civic
rlghts, such as the right to vote, the right to possess a firearm,
the right to hold offilce, and the right to gerve on a jury.

Defendant understands that once the court accepts defendant's gullty
pléa, it will be a federal felony for defendant to posgsgess a firearm
or ammunition. Defeﬁdant undergtands that the conviction in thig
case may algo subject defendant to various other collateral
congequences, including but not limited to mandatory exclusion from
federal health care benefit programsg for a minimum of five vears,
suspension or revocation of a professional license, and revocation of
probation, parole, or supervised release in another case. Defendant
understands that unanticipated collateral consequences will not sexve
ag grounds to withdraw defendant’s gquilty plea.

17, Defendant understands that; 1f defendant ils not a United
States citizen, the felony conviction in this case may subject
defendant to: removal, also known as deportation, which may, under
some circumstances, be mandatory; denlal of citizenship; and denial
df admission to the United States in the future. The court cannot,
and defendant’s attorﬁey also may not be able to, advise defendant
.fully regarding the ilmmigration consequences of the felony conviction

in thie case. Defendant understands that unexpected immigration

10
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|

congeguences will not serve as grounds to withdraw defendant’s gullty

plea,
FACTUAL BASIS

18. Defendant admits that defendant ig, in fact, guilty of the

and thé%USAdndgfee*tbfEﬂé“stétéméhﬁ'of-fadts”providea'beiow'and agree
that this statement of facts is sufficlent to support pleas of gullty
to the charges described in'this agreemenﬁ and to egtablish the
Sentencing Guidelines factors set forth in paragraph 20 below but ig
not meant to be a complete recitation of all facts relevant to the
underlying criminal conduct or all facts known to either party that

relate to that conduct,

Background
At various times from in or shout March 2008 to in or about

January 2014, defendant and Joseff Sales owned and operated RBG
Rehab, Inc. (“R8G"), Rehab Dynamics, Inc. (*Rehab Dynamicg”), and
Innovation Physilcal Therapy; Inc. (“Innovaﬁion"), California
corporations, which were located at various sites in Loas Angelep and
Orange Counties, within the Central Diatricﬁ of Callfornia. &s of
‘early 2009, defendant was a physical therapist éssistant (*PTAY)
licensed to practice in California. Defendant signed a Medicare
provider application, enrcolling RSG ag a provider with Medicare, a
federal health benefit program for individuals aged 65 and older and
certain disabled persons. Ad part of that application, defendant
certified that he would submit truthful and accurate claims and would

know and abide by all Medicare regulations.

11

offenses to which defendant is agreeilrg-te plead-guilty.  Defendant - |

-
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Health Care Fraud

Beginning in or about March 2008, and continuing until at leagtht
in or about January 2014, in Los Angeles and Orange Countiles, wilthin
the Central Dist;ict of California, and elsewhere, defendant,
together with Jogeff Sales, Marlon Songco, and othe;s known and
unknown to the Grand Jury, knowingly, willfully, and with the intent
to defraud, executed and attempted to execute a scheme ahd artlfice:

{1} to defraud a health care benefit program, namely Medicare, as to

health care benefits, iltems, and services; and (2) to obtain money
from Medicare by meang -of material false and fraudulent pretenses and
repregentations and the concealment of material facts.in connection
with the delivery of and payment for health care benefits, ltems, and

gervices, in violation of Title 18, United States Code, Section 1349.

material matters in comnection with.the delivery. of .and.payment .£or. .-f-... .

Aiﬁhouéhmaefendéﬁt iﬁggiallymb;iievéd Eﬂ;EMEEéNWOuld conduct
business in a léwful mannér; approximately a year after'he opened the
company with Joseff Salee in 2008, through his increasing familiarity
wiﬁh RSG’é day-to-day opérations, he became aware.thgt RSG, and -
subsequently\:nhbﬁa;ion and Rehab Dynamics, were bging.ﬁééd.to commit -
fraud against Medicare through the submission éﬁlgféudulent‘qlaimS'
for physical therapy that_often‘ngver_dqcurred.-‘At}Qhét.point,
defendant. joined in:and became a full and Willingrpérticipant.in the,
scheme to commit health care fraud, - '

In order to obtaln Medicare beneficiarles for RSG, Rehab
Dynamicg, and Innovation, defendant, Joseff Sales, and Marlon Songco
paid illegal kickbacks out.oi the RSG@, Rehab Dynamics, and Innovation
business bank accounts to outside companies, including companies

owned by B.M. and J.M. (i.e., Glory Rehab), S.H. (i.e., Hong's

12
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Medical Management CMH Practice Solutions, and HEK Practlce and

::solutlons), @hun Kwon (ibe., By K Medical), an'ﬁm'

s
ﬁhiﬂ Hcpe), in exchange for th@ referral of Medlcara benefi&iaflea to RSG f-;i->
4

‘ Rehab Dynamlcsp and Inmovation fok physical therapy the patienbs

often never received. Defendant and Joseff Sales hired licensed
physical theraplets (“PTs’) to provide initial evaluations of
beneficlaries. However, ag defendant well knew, some of these
evaluationg did not take place and those PTs rarely provided
treatment at any follow-up visite. While at RSG, Rehab Dynamics, and
Innovation, many of the beneficiaries received only masgage and
acupuncture, gervices defendant knew were not covered by Medicare,

from individuals not licensed to provide physical therapy. Those

unlicenged individuale were provided by the same outgide companies
that referred the benefilciarilies to RSG, Rehab Dynamicg, and

Inmovatilon,

Defandant submittad and knew othérs submitted to Accublll false
information regarding physical therapy claims, intending that
Accubill would use that information to submit false and fraudulent
¢laimg to Medicare on REG's, Rehab Dynamics’, and Innovation’s
behalf. In partilcular, defendant, Joseff Sales, and Marlon Songco
prepared fraudulent documentation that was provided to Accubill,
falseiy claiming (1) that PTe were providing medically necessary
physical therapy treatmént, when in fact unlicenged individuale were
often providing uncovered magpage and acupuncture, and (2) that Pls
had treated patients they actually had not treated, including
treatment purportedly occurring at times at which those PTs were

working at other companies or were out of the country,

13
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[

Ag an example, for the purpose of executing and attempting to
execute the fraudulent gcheme, defendant knowingly and willéully
pubmitted and caused to be submitted to Medicare on or about December
21, 2011 a false and fraudulent c¢laim (claim number 55L111355441260) ,
This false and fraudulent c¢laim alleged that Jogeff Sales performed a
physilcal therapy evaluation for benefidiary A.K. on December 5, 2011
in the Los Angeles area. However, despite submitting and causing the
claim to be submitted, defendant knew that Joseff Sales did not
perform such physical therapy on December 5, 2011 because Joseff
Sales was located in Las Vegas, Nevada with defendant and defendant's
family on this date.

Illegal Remuneration {Payment of Kickbécks) ‘

Between in or about March 2008 and in or about Januar? 2014, in
Los Angeles and Orange Counties, within the Central District of
California, and elsewhere, defendant knowingly and willfully offéred
and paid kickbacks payable to Giory Rehab, Hong's Medical Management,
E,K. Medical, and New Hope in exchange for the referral of Medicare
beneficiaries and for the clinics to provide services uncovered by
Medicare, including massages and acupuncture,’ Defendant, Joseff
Saleg, and Marlon Songco paid approximately 55% of the Medicare
payments recelved to 8.H., David Kim, Ohun Kwon, B.M and J.M., and
others for referring the beneficiaries who purportedly received
physical therapy serviceg. At that time, defendant knew it was
illegal to offer or pay such payments in exchange for the referral of
patiénta for gervices pald by Medicare. As an example, on or about
May 11, 2011, defendant knowingly and willfully offered and paid
S.H,, through Hong's Medical, approximately $2,184.25 in exchange for
the referral of Medicare beneficiaries to RSG so that purported

14
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physilcal therapy services for these beneficiaries could be billed to

Medicare,

Loss

Between in or about March 2008 and in or about January 2014,
R8G, Rehab Dynamiés, and Innovation submitted approximately
$15,295,460 in false and fraudulent claims to Medlcare, for which
Medicare paid approximately $7,896,007. During this same'period,'
RSGE, Rehab Dynamiceg, and Innovation paid wmore than $3.0 million to
outglide companies affiliated with S.H., Ohun Kwon, David Kim, B.M.
and J.M:, and others for the referral of Medicare beneflciaries.

SENTENCING FACTORS

19. Defendant undergtands that in determining defendant’s
gentence the Court ie required to calculate the applicable Sentencing
Guidelines range and to conslder that range, possible departures
under the Sentencing Guidelines, and the other sentencing factors set
forth in 18 U.8.C. § 3563(a). Defendant understands that the
Sentencing Guidelines are advisory only, that defendant cannot have
any expectation of receiving a sentence within the calculated
Sentencing Guidelines range, and that after considering the
Sentencing Guldelines and the other § 3853(a) factors, the Court will
be free to exercige 1ts discretion to impose any sentence it finds
appropriate up to the maximum set by statute‘for the crimes of
conviction.

20. Defendant and the USAO agree to the following applicable

Sentencing Guidelines factors:
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Count 2 {Health Care Fraud):

Base Offange Level 6 U,.8.8.6. § 2BL.1({a) (2)
Loss more than $9.5 million, —
Legs than $25 mlllion +20 U.8.8.¢. § 2B1.1(b) (1) (K)

Federal health care offense +3 U.8.8.G., § 2BL1,1(b) (7)
involving government health _

care program and loss more

than $9.5 million

Total Offense Level 29

Count 14 (Kickback):

Bage Offense Level : 8 U.8.8.@, § 2B4.1(a)

Value of Benefit Conferred in
Raturn for Kickbacks +18 U.8.8.G. §§ 2B4.1(b){(1);
2B1.1(b) {1) (J)

Total Offense Level 26 | UTS.S.G. § 3El1.1l
Grouping
1 Unit _ +0 U.8.8.G., §§ 3D1.2
Enhancemeﬁt

- Abuge of Position of Trust +2 U.8.8.G. § 3Bl.3
Total Offense Level 31

Defendant and the USAO reserve the right to argue that additional
sﬁecific offense characteristics, adjustments, and departures under
the Sentencing Guidelines are appropriate.

21, Defendant understands that there 1s no agreement ag to
defendant’s criminal history or criminal history category.

22, Defendant and the USAO reserve the right to argue for a
gsentence outside the aentencing range egtablished by.the Sentencing
Guidelineg based on the factors set forth in 18 U.8,C. § 3553(a) (1),

(a) (2}, (a)(3), (a)(6), and {a) (7).

L6
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WAIVER OF CONSTITUTIONAL RIGHTS

23, Defendant understands that by pleading guilty, defendant
gives up the following rights:

a. The right to persist in a plea of not guilty.

b, The right to a speedy and public trial by jury.

c., The right to be represented by counsel - and if
necessary have the court appoint counsel - at trial. Defendant
understands, however, that, defendant retains the right to be
represented by counsel - and 1f necessary have the court appoiﬁt
coungel ~ at every other stage of the proceeding.

d. The right to be presumed innocent and to have the

.burden of proof placed on the government to prove defendant guilty

beyond a reasonable doubt.

= The right to confrbnt and crogg-examine witnesses
againgt defendant. |

£, The right to testify and to present evidence in
oppositlon to the charges, including the right to compel the

attendance of witnesses to testify.

g. The right not to be compaelled to testify, and, if
defendant choge not to testify ox present evidence, to have that
cholce not be used against defendant.

h, Any and all rights to pursue any afflrmative defenses,
Fourth Amendment or Fifth Amenduent claims, and other pretrial
motions that have bheen filled or could be filed,

WAIVER OF APPEAL OF CONVICTION

24, Defendant understands that, with the exception of an appeal
based on a c¢laim that defendant’s gullty pleas were involuntary, by
pleading guilty defendant is waiving and giving up any right to

17
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appeal defendant’s convictions on the offenses to which defendant is

pleading gullty.
LIMITED MUTUAIL WAIVER OF APPEAL OF SENTENCE

25, Defendant agrees that, provided the Court imposes a total

term of imprisonment on all counte of conv;ction within or below the
range corregponding to an offense level of 31 and the criminal
history category calculated by the Court, defendant gives up the
right to appeal all of the following: (a) the procedures and
caleulatlons used to determine and impose any portion of the
gsentence; (k) the term of imprisomment imposed by the Court; (c) the
fine imposed by the court, provided it ie within the statutory
maximum; (d) the amount and.terms of any restitution order, provided
it requires payment of no more than $7,896,007; (e) the term of
probation or supervised release imposed by the Court, provided it is
within the gtatutory maximum; and (f) any of the following conditions
of probation or supervised release imposed by the Court: the
conditions set forth in General Orders 318, 01-05, and/or 05-02 of
thig Court; the drug tegting conditions mandated by 18 U.8.C,

'§§ 3563 (a) (5) and 3583 (d); and the alcohol and drug uge conditionsg

authorized by 18 U.8,C. § 3563 (b) (7).

26. The USAO agrees that, provided (a) all portions of the
sentence are at or below the statutory maximum specified above and
(b) the Court imposes a term of imprisonment within or above the
range corresponding to an offense level of 28 and the criminal
history category calculated by the Court, the USAO gives up its right
to appeal any portilon of the sentence, with the exception that the
USAO regerves the right to appeal the amount of resgtitution ordered
if that amount is less than §7,896,007.

18
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RESULT OF WITHDRAWAL OF GUILTY FLEA

27, Defendant agrees that if, after emntering gullty pleas
pursuant to this agreement, defendant seeks to withdraw and succeeds

in withdrawing defendant’s gullty pleas on any basls other than.a

Mreratmand  Finding thEt entey ints thlig pled agresnaent —wag

involuntary, then (a) the USAO will be relieved of all of its
obligations under this agreement, including in particular its
obligations regarding the use of Cooperation Information; (b) in any
investigation, criminal prosecution, or clvil, administrative, ox
regulatory action, defendant agrees that any Cooperation Information
and any evidence derived from any Cooperation Information shall be
'aﬁmissible against defendant, and defendant will not assert, and
hersby walves and glves up, any claim under the United States
Constitutlon, any statute, or any federal rule, that any Cooperation

Information or any evidence derived from any Cooperation Information

should be suppressed or is inadmissible; and (¢} should the USAO
chooge to pursue any charge that was either dismissed oxr not filed as
a regult of this agreement, then (i) any applicable gtatute of
limitations will be tolled between the date of defendant’s signing of
this agreement and the £iling commencing any such action; and

{11) defendant waives and gives up all defenses baged on the gtatute
of limitations, any claim of pre-indictment delay, or any speedy
trial claim with regpect to any such action, except to the extent
that such defenses existed as of the date of defendant’'s gigning this

.agresment.,

is
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EFFECTIVE DATE OF ACGREEMENT

28, 'This agreement 1s effective upon signature and execution of

all required certlfications by defendant, defendant’s counsel, and an

Assistant United States Attorney.
BREACH OF AGREEMENT

29. Defendant agrees that if defendant, at any time after the
gignature of this agreement and execution of all required
certificationelby defendant, defendant’s counsgel, and an Assistant
Unlted States Attorney, knowingly violates or falls to perform any of
defendant’s obligations under thig agreement (“a breach”), the USACQ
may declare this agreement breached. For example, if defendant
knowlngly, in an interview, before a grand jury, or at trial, falsely
accuses another person of criminal conduct or falsely wminimizesg
defendant’s own role, or the role of another, in c¢riminal conduct,
defendant will have breached this agreement. All of defendant’s
6bligations are material, a single breach of this agreement is
gufflcient for the USAC to declare a breach, and defendant shall not
be deemed to have cured a breach without the express agreement of the
USAQ ;n writing. If the USAO declares thila aé?eement breached, and
the Court findg such a bhreach to have o¢curred, then:

a. If defendant has previously entered gullty pleas

pursuant to this agreement, defendant will not be able to withdraw

the guilkty pleas.
L. - The USAC will be relieved of all its obligations under

this agreement; in particular, the USAO: (1) will no longer be bound
by any agreements concerning sentencingrand will be free to seek any
gentence up to the statubtory maximum for the crimes to which
defendant has pleaded guilty; (ii) will no longer be bound by any

20
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agreements regarding criminal prosecution, and will be free to
criminally prosecute defendant for any crime, including charges that
the USAO would otherwise have been obligated to diemise pursuant to
this agreement; and (iii) willl no longer be bound by any agreement
regarding the use of Cooperation Information and will be free to use
any Cooperation Information in any way in any investigation, criminal

progecution, or c¢ivil, administrative, or regulatory action.

c. The USAO will be free to driminally prosecute
defendant for falge statement, obstruction of justice, and perjury
baged on any knowingly false or misleading statement by defendant,

d. In any investigation, criminal prosecution, or civii,
adminisgtrative, or regulatory action: (i) defendant will not assert,
and hereby waives and gives up, any clailm that any Cooperation
Information was obtained in violation of the Fifth Amendment
.privilega against compelled pelf-incrimination; and (ii) defendant
agrees that any Cooperation Information and any Plea Information, ag.
well as any evidence derived from any Cooperation Information or any
Plea Information, ashall be admigsible againgt defendant, and

defendant. will not assert, and hereby waives and gives up, any claim

20
21

22

23

24
25
26
27

28

under the United States Consetitution, any statute, Rule 410 of the

Fedéral Rules’ of Evidence, Rule 11(f) of the;FedgrallRules of

Criminal Procedure, or.any other. federal rule,  that any Cooperation

mInformatiohriany ------ Pléa_InﬁormationT_Qr—any;evidenqewdéEiVGdnfmom_any

Cooperation iﬁformation or any Plea Information. should be suppresged

or ig inadmissible, |
30. Following the Court’s finding of a knowing breach of this

agreement by defendant, should the USAO choose to pursue any charge

21
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that was either dismissed or not filled as a result of this agreement,
then:
a. Defendant agrees that any applicable statute of

limitations is tolled between the date of defendant’s signihg of this

.agreement and the Ffiling.commencing any such action,

b. Defendant waives and gives up all defensges based on
the gtatute of limitations, any claim of pre-indictment delay, or any
speedy trial claim with respect to ény guch action, except to the.
extent that such defenses existed as of the date of defendant's.

signing this agreement.
COURT AND PROEATION OFFICE NOT PARTIES

31, Defendant understands that the Court and the United States
Probation Office are not partiles to this agreement and need not
accept any of thé USAQ'8 gentencing recommendations or thé parties’
agreementg to facts or gentencing factors.

32, Defendant undergtands that both defendant and the USAO are
free to: {(a) supplement the facts by supplying relevant information
to the United States Probation 0ffice and the Court, (b) correct.any
and all factual misgstatements relating to the Court’s Sentencing
Guidelines calculations and determination of sentence, and (¢) argue
on appeal and collateral review that the Court’s Sentencing
Guldelines calculations and the sentence it chooses to impose are not
error, although éach party agrees to maintéin ite view that the
calculations in paragraph 20 are consgistent with the facts of this
case, While this paragraph permite both the USAO and defendant to
gubmit full and complete Ffactual information to the United Stateé

Probation Office and the Court, even if that factual information may

be viewed as inconglstent with the facts agreed to in this agreement,

22
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this paragraph doeg not affect defendant’s and the USAO's obligations
not to contest the facts agreed to in this agreement.

33, Defendant understands that even if the Court ignores any
sentencing recommendation, finds facts or reaches conclusions
different from those agreed to, and/or imposes any sentence up to the
maximum established by statute, defendant cannct, for that reason,
withdraw defendant’s guilty pleas, and defendant will remain bound to
fulfill all defendant’s oblligations under this agreement. Defendant
undergtands that no one -- not the prosecutor, defendant’s attorney,
or the Court ~- can make % binding prediction or promise regarding
the gentence defendant will receive, excapﬁ that it will'belwithin
the statutory maximum.

NO ADDITIONAL AGREEMENTS

34. Defendant understands that, except ag set forth herein,
there are no promiges, understandings, or agreements between the USAO
and defendant or defendant’s attorney,_and that no additional
promise, understanding, or agreement wmay be entered Iinto unless in a

writing signed by all. parties or on the record in court.

/!
//
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PLEA AGREEMENT PART OF THE GUTLTY PLEA HEARING

35. The parties agree that this agreement will be considered

part of the record of defendant’s guilty plea hearing as if the

entire agreenent had been read into the record of the proceeding.

AGREED AFD ACCEPTED

UNITED STATES ATTORNEY'S OFFICE
FOR THE CENTRAL DISTRICT OF
CALIFORNIA

EILEEN M. DRCKER
United States Attorney

B () M-

BYRDNJ?
Agsistént nlted States Attorney

,-—-’

DANNIEL
Defendan %’
//am’ . TN

JDHNIT
Attorn ndant Baxmle
Goye
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CERTIFICATION OF DEFENDANT

I have read this agreement in its entirety. I have had emough
time to review and consider this agreement, and I have carefully and
thoroughly discussed every part of it with my attorney. I uwaderstand
the terms of this agreement, and I veluntarily agree to thoge "terms .
I have discussed the evidence with my attorney, and my attorney hag
advised me of my rights, of possible pretrial motions that might be
filed, of possible defenses that might be asserted either prior to or
at trial, of.the.sentencing factors set forth in 18 U.S8.¢. § 3553{a),
of relevant Sentencing Guidelines pruvisioﬁs, and of the conseguences
of eﬁtering into this agreement. No promises, inducements, ox

representations of any kind have been made to me other than those

Contained in thie agreement. No one has threatened or forced me in

any way .to enter into this agreement. . I am satisfied with the
repreaentatioﬁ of my attdrhéy'im this matter, and T am plﬁadﬁmg
guilty because I am guilty”of‘the charges and Wish-to:téke advantaged

reasen. . ... - . o o T

. T /e )75

DAMNIEL ¢OYENA Date
Def=mn o




no & WowW

10
11
12
13

14

15

16

17

18

192

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

e ———

Case 2:15-cr-00576-DOC Document 39 Filed 11/18/15 Page 26 of 26 Page ID #:146

CERTIFICATION QF DEFENDANT’S ATTORNEY

I am DANKIEL, GOYENA’'s attormey. I have carefully and thoroughly
discussed every part of this agreement with my client. PFurther, T
have fully advised my clien# of his rights, of possible pretrial
motions that wmight be filed, of possgible defenses that might be
aggerted either prior to or at trial, of the sentencing factors set
forth in 18 U.8.C. § 3853(a}, of relevant Sentencing Guidelines
provigions, and of the consequences of entering into this agreement.
To my knoﬁledge: no promiges, inducements, or representations of any
kind haﬁe been made to my client other than those contained in this
agreement; no one has threatened or forced my client in any way to
enter intc this agreement; my client’s decision to enter into this
agreement is an informed and voluntary one; and the factual basis set
forth in this agreement iz sufficient to support my client’s entry of

guilty pleas, pursuant to this agreement.

/\/M BB s

JOHRITE EJERCET -/ Date
Attorney /for/Dé¢fendant Dgnniel
Coyena ‘
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KAVIER BECERRA _

Attorney General of California

JUDITH T, ALVARADO

Supervising Deputy Attorney General

NICHOLAS B.C. SCHULTZ

Deputy Attorney General

State Bar No, 302151
California Department of Justice
300 South Spring Street, Suite 1702
Los Angeles, California 90013
Telephone: (213) 897-6564
Facsimile: (213) 897-9395

Attorneys jor Complainant

BEFORE THE '
PHYSICAL THERAPY BOARD OF CALIFORNIA
DEPARTMENT OF CONSUMER AFFAIRS

STATE OF CALIFORNIA
in the Matter of the Accusation Against: Case No. 720-2017-000807
DANNIEL E. GOYENA, P.T.A.
11662 Carmenita Road, Apt. E

Whittier, California 9060 ACCUBATION

|l Physical Therapist Assistant License No. 8938,
| Respondent. |

Complainant alleges:

1. Jason Kaiser (Complainant) brings this Accusation solely in his official capacity as
the Executive Officer of the Physical Therapy Board of California, Department of Consumer
Affairs (Beérd). . |
2. Onorabout February 19, 2009, the Physical Therapy Board of California issued

Physical Therapist Assistant License Number 8938 to Danniel E. Goyena, P.T.A. (Respondent).

I The Physical Therapist Assistant License was in full force and effect at all times relevant to the

!l

Il taws, All section references are (o the Business and Professions Code unless otherwise indicated.

charges brought herein and will expire on July 31, 2018, unless renewed.

3. This Accusation is brought before the Board under the authority of the following

] i
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I California in exerciging its licensing, regulatory, and disciplinary functions. Whenever the

it required by the director pursuant to Section 164, the license issued by the board shall deseribe the

| issuance of a probationary license. The board may, after the conduot of appropriate procesdings

H| under the Administrative Procedure Act (Chapter 4.5 (commencing with Seotion 11400} of Part 1

| violation of, or conspiring to violate any provision of this chapter, any regulations duly adopted

4, Section 2602.1 of the Code states:
“Protection of the public shall be the highest priority for the Physical Therapy Board of

protection of the public is inconsistent with other interests sought to be promoted, the protection
of the public shall be paramount.”

5. Section 2605 of the Code states:

“The board shall do all of the following:

*{a) Evaluate the gualifications of applicants for licensure.

“{b) Provide for the examinations of physical therapists and physical therapist assistants and
establish a passing score for sach examination,

“(c) 1ssue all licenses for the practice of physical therapy in California, Except as otherwise

licensee as a ‘physical therapist’ or *physical therapist assistant’ licensed by the Physical Therapy |
Board of California. '
*(d) Suspond and revoke licenses and otherwise enforce the provisions of this chapter.
“ »
6.  Section 2660 of the Code states:

“Unprofessional conduct constitutes grounds for oitation, discipline, denial of a license, or

of Division 3 of Title 2 of the Government Code), issue a citation, impose discipline, deny a
license, suspend for not more than 12 months, or revoke, or impose probationary conditions upon
any leense issued under this chapter for unprofessional conduct that includes, in addition to other
provisions of this chapter, but is not fimited 1o, the following:

“(a) Violating or atteropting to violate, directly or indirectly, assisting in or abetting the

under this chapter, or the Medical Practice Act (Chapter 3 (commerncing with Section 2000)).

113
¥
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*(e) Conviction of a crime that substantially relates o the qualifications, functions, or duties
: of & physical therapist or physical therapist assistant. The record of conviction or a certified copy

" thereof shall be conclusive evidence of that conviction.

[13
*

*(j} The commission of any fraudulent, dishonest, or corrupt act-that is substantially related
to the qualifications, functions, or duties of a physical therapist or physical therapist assistant,
7. Section 2661 of the Code states:
“A plea or verdict of guilty or a conviction following a plea of nolo contendere is deemed to
" be & conviction within the meaning of this article. The board may order discipline of the licensee

in accordance with Section 2660 or the board may take action as authorized in Section 2660.2 on

Il an application when the time for appeal has elapsed, or the judgment of conviction has been

[t affirmed on appeal or when an order granting probation is made suspending the imposition of
sentence, irrespective of a subsequent order under Section 1203.4 of the Penal Code allowing that
person to withdraw his or her plea of guilty and 1o enter a plea of not guilty, or setting aside the

il verdict of guilty, or dismissing the accusation, information, or indictment.

8. Section 490 of the Code states:

“{a) In addition to any other action that a board is permitied to take against a licensee, a

i| board may suspend or revoke a license on the ground that the licensee has been convicted of &
crime, if the crime is substantially related to the qualifications, functions, or duties of the business
or profession for which the license was issued.

“(b) Notwithstanding any other provision of law, a board may exercise any authority to

discipline a licensee for conviction of a crime that is independent of the authority granted under
subdivision (a) only if the crime is substantiaily related to the qualifications, functions, or duties
" of the business or profession for which the licensee's license was issued,

“(¢) A convigtion within the meaning of this section means a plea or verdict of guilty or a
conviction foliowing a plea of nolo contendere, Any action that a board is permitted to take

following the establishment of a conviction may be taken when the time Tor appeal has elapsed, or

3
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the judgment of conviction has been affirmed on appenl, or when an order granting probation is

made suspending the imposition of sentence, irrespective of 2 subsequent order under the

| provisions of Section 1203.4 of the Penal Code,

“(d) The Legislatare hereby finds and declares that the application of this section has been
made unclear by the holding in Petropoulos v. Deporiment of Real Estate (2006) 142 Cal.App.4th
554, and that the holding in that case has placed & significant number of statutes and regulations
in question, resulting in potential harm to the é:cmsumers of California from licensees who have
heen convicted of crimes. Therefore, the Legislature finds and declares that this section
establishes an independent basis for a board to impose discipline npon a licensee, and that the
amendments §o this section made by Senate Bill 797 of the 2007-08 Regular Session do not
constitute a change to, but rather are declaratory of, existing law.™

9, Section 493 of the Code states:

“Notwithstanding any other provision of law, in 4 proceeding conducted by a board within
the department pursum to law to deny an application for a license or to suspend or revoke a
license or otherwise take disciplinary action against a person who holds a license, npon the

ground that the applicant or the licensee has been convicted of a erime substantially related to the

|| qualifications, functions, and duties of the licensee in question, the record of conviction of the
| | crime shall be conclusive evidence of the fact that the conviction ovcurred, but only of that fact,
| and the board may inquire into the circumstances surrounding the commission of the crime in

| order to fix the degree of discipline or to determine if the conviction is substantially related to the

qualifications, functions, and duties of the licensee in question.

R1] k4]
PR

10.  California Code of Regulations, title 16, section 1399.20, states:

“For the purposes of denial, suspension or revocation of a license, pursuant to Division 1.5
{commencing with Section 475) of the code, a crime or act shall be considered 1o be substantially
related to the qualifications, functions or duties of a person holding a license under the Physical
Therapy Practice Act if to a substantial degree it evidences present or potential unfitness of a

person to perform the functions authorized by the license or approval in & manner consistent with

4
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the public health, safety or welfare, Such crimes or acts shall include but not be limited 1o the
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1| any felony or misdemeanor.

artifice--

following:
| *(a) Violating or attempting to violate, directly or indirectly, or assisting in or abetting the
violation of, or conspiring to violate any provigion or term of the Physical Therapy Practice Act.
“{b) Conviction of 4 crime involving fiscal dishonesty arising out of or in connection with
the practice of physical therapy.
“(¢) Violating or attempting to violate any provigion or term of the Medical Practice Act.”
11, California Code of Regulations, title 16, section 1399.24, states:
“In addition to the conduct described in Section 2660 of the Code, *unprofessional conduet® |
also includes but is not limited to the following:
“a '
*“(d) Failure to report to the board within 30 days any of the following:
(1) The bringing of an indictment or information charging a felony against the
licensee,
{2) The arrest of the licensee,

(3) The conviction of the lizenses, including any verdiet of guilty or no contest, of

£1] ki)
P

12, United States Code, title 18, Section 1347 states:

“(a) Whaeﬁar knowingly and willfully executes, or attempts to execute, a scheme or

“(1) to defraud any health care benefit program; or

“{2) to obtain, by means of false or 'fraudui.ant- pretenses, tepresentations, or promises, any
of the money or property owned by, or under the custody or control of, any health care benefit
program,

“in connection with the delivery of or payment for hiealth care benefits, items, or services,

shall be fined under this title or imprisoned not more than 10 years or both, If the violation resuits

5
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in serious bodily injury (as defined in section 1365 of this title), such petson shall be fined under

| this title or imprisoned not more than 20 years, or both; and if the violation results in death, such

person shall be fined under this title, or imprisoned for any term of years or for life, or both.

“(b) With respeot o violations of this section, a person need not have actual knowledge of
this section or specific intent to commit & violation of this section.”

13, United States Code, title 42, Section 1320a-7b, subdivision (b), subsection (2) states:

“Whosver knowingly and willfully offers or pays any remuneration (inciuding any

kickback, bribe, or rebate) directly or indirectly, overtly or covertly, in cash or in kind to any

| person o induce such person--

“(A) 1o refer an individual to a person for the furnishing or arranging for the furnishing of
any item or serviee for which payment may be made in whole or in part under a Federal health |
care program, or

“shall be guilty of a felony and upon conviction thersof, shall be fined not more than
$25,000 or imprisoned for not more than five years, or both.”

COST RECOVERY
14, Section 2661.5 of the Code states:

“(a) In any order issued in resolution of a disciplinary procseding before the board, the
board may request the administrative law judge to direct any licensee found guilty of
unprofessional conduct to pay to the board a éum not 10 exceed the actual and reasonable costs of
the investigation and prosecution of the case.

“(b) The costs to be assessed shall be fixed by the administrative law judge and shall not in
any event be increased by the board, When the board does not adopt a proposed decision and
remands the case to an administrative law judge, the administrative law Jjudge shall not increase
the amount of the assessed costs specified in the proposed decision.

*c) When the payment directed in an order for payment of costs is not made by the

| licensee, the board may enforce the order of payment by bringing an action in any appropriate

| 1

&
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court. This right of enforcement shall be in addition to any other rights the board may have as to
any licensee directed o pay costs,
“(d) In any judicial action for the recovery of costs, proof of the baa.rd':"s decision shall be
conclusive proof of the validity of the order of payment and the terms for _paymant.. |
“(e) (1) Exoept as provided in paragraph (2), the board shall not renew o reinstate the

license or approval of any person who has failed to pay all of the costs ordered under this section.

*(2) Notwithstanding paragraph (1), the board may, in its discretion, conditionally renew or
reinstate for a maximur of one year the license or approval of any person who demonstrates
financial hardship and who enters into a formsl agreement with the board to reimburse the board
within that one year period for those unpaid costs.

“(f) All costs recovered under this section shall be deposited in the Physical Therapy Fund
as & reimbursement in either the fiscal year in which the costs are actually recovered or the
previous fiscal year, as the board may direct.”

EACTUAL SUMMARY
15, On December 17, 2015, in the case entitied the Unlied States of America v, Dannfel

Govenag, case pumber 2:15-cr-00576-D0OC-2, in the United States District Cowt for the Central
District of California, Respondent entered a plea of guilty to Health Care Fraud, a felony, in
violation of United States Code, title 18, Section 1347, subdivision (a), subsection (2), and
subdivigion (b). Respondent alse entered a plea of guilty to Illegal Remunerations for Health
Care Referrals, a felony, in violation of United States Code, title 42, Section 1320a-7b,
subdivision (b), subsection (2).

16.  Prior to his change of pi&a and sentencing, Respondent entered into and executed a
plea agresment with the United States Attorney’s Office wherein Respondent agreed 10 the factual
basis described in paragraph 18 below. On December 19, 2016, Respondent was sentenced based
on his guilty pleas to violating United States Code, title 18, Section 1347, subdivision (a),
subsection (2), and United States Code, title 42, $e§t§an 1320a-7b, subdivision (b), subsection (2).
"The remaining charges filed against Respondent were dismissed pursuant to the plea agregment.

As part of his ples agreement with the United States Attorney’s Office, Respondent expressly

7
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agreed to the revocation of his physical therapist assistant license résulting in his loss of all rights

and privileges as a licensed physical therapist assistant in California. Furthermore, Regpondent

| agreed that he would not apply for licensure or petition for reinstatement of his revoked physical

therapist assistant license for at Jeast five years from the effective date of the license revoeation.

17, Inaccordance with the plea agreement, Respondent was sentenced to fifty-one
months in the custody of the federal Bureau of Prisons with an additional order that Respondent
surrender himself to the Bureau of Prizons before 12:00 p.m, on January 3, 2017, Respondent
was also sentenced to three years of supérvised release ﬁpmn his release from imprisonment with
the following terms and conditions:

A.  Payment of $7,896,007.00 in restitution for joint and several liability of the
health care fraud scheme perpetrated by Respondent and his co-defendants;

B. A requirement that Respondent submit his person and property 1o search and
seizure at any time of the day or night by sny law enforcement officer with or without & warrant
and with or without reasonable or probable cause;

C.  Arvequirement that Respondent report o the United States Probation Office
within seventy-two hours of his release from custody;

D. A requirement that Respondent report in person directly to the Court within 21
days of his release from custody, at a date and time to be set by the United States Frobation
Office, and thereafier report in person to the Cowrt no more than eight times during his first year
of supervised release;

E. A requirement that Respondent not possess, have under his control, or have

‘access to any firearm, explosive device, or other dangerous weapon;

F. A reguirement that Respondent comply with the rules and regulations of the

1 United States Probaﬁoﬁ Office, General Order (05-02, and General Order 01 03, including the

three special conditions delineated in General Order 01-05;
G. A requirement that Respondent not commit any vielation of local, state or
federal law or ordinance;

i
8
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H. A requirement that Respondent pay the special assessment and restitution

i amounts during the period of community supervision;

L. A requirément that Respondent comply with the immigration rules snd

| regulations of the United States, and if deporied from this C«Gﬁﬁﬁ‘y, either voluntarily or

involuntarily, not reenter the United States illegally;
1. A reguirement that Respondent cooperate in the collection of a DNA samiple;
K. A requirement that Respondent not obtain or possess any driver's Hcense,
Social Security number, birth certificate, passport or any other form of identification in any ﬁame,

other than the defendant’s true legal name, and not use any nanie other thay his true legal name

i without prior written approval of the Probation Officer; and

L. Arequirement that Respondent apply all monies recetved from income tax -

refunds, lottery winnings, inheritance, judgments, and any anticipated or unexpected financial

| gains to the outsianding court-ordered financial obligation.

i18. The circumstances Jeading to Respondent’s criminal convictions are as follows:

‘ A, Atvarious times betwesn March 2008 and January 2014, Respondent owned
and operated RSG Rehab, Inc. (R8G), Rehab Dynamics, Inc. (Rehab Dynamics), and Innovation
Physical Therapy, Inc. (Innovation) with 1.8., a co-defendant working as a licensed physical
therapist. RSG, Rehab Dynamics and Innovation were California corporations operating in Los
Angeles and Qfaﬁge counties. Respondent envolled RSG as a provider with Medicare,’ a federal
health care benefit program that provides reimbursement for madiealiy NECessAry services 1o
persons aged sixty-five years and older, as well as for certain disabled persons. Respondent’s
application for enrolbment as a Medicare provider enabled RSG, Rehab Dynamics, and Innovation
10 submit reimbursement claims to Medicare, As part of the Medicare provider application,
Respondent certified that he would submit truthful and accurate claims apd that he would know

and abide by all Medicare regulations,

! Medicare is administered by the Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services, a fedoral agency

| under the United States Departrment of Health and Human Services, Individuals that qualify for Medicare

benefits are referred to as “benefictaries,” wheress physicians and other health care providers that are
reimbursed by Medicare are referred 10 as “providers.”

9
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B.  Although Respondent initially believed that RSG would conduct business in a

Jawful manner, he became aware that R8G, Rehab Dynamics and Innovation were being used to

| commit fraud against Medicare through the submission of fraudulent claims for physical therapy

| that often never cecurred by his co-defendants. Respondent learned of this fraudulent activity

approximately one year after he opsned the company with 1.8, At that point, Respondent became

Il a full and willing participant in the scheme to defraud the Medicare health care benefit program as
Ji to material matters in connection with the delivery of and payment for health care benefits, items

i and services. Respondent also acted to obtained money from Medicare by means of material false
and fraudulent pretenses, misrepresentations, and concealment of material facts in connection

with the delivery of and payment for health care services,

C.  Respondent, along with his co-defendants, paid illegal kickbacks out of
business bank accounts for RSG, Rehab Dynamics, and Innovation to several outside gompanies
in exchange for the referral of I\fi&dis:a;re beneficiaries to RSG, Rehab Dynamics, and Innovation
for physical therapy that the patients often _ﬁave.:r received. Respondent and J.S. then hired
licensed physical therapists to provide initial evaluations and re-svaluations of the beneficiaries at
various elinics. However, Respondent knew that some of these evaluations did not take place and
that the physical therapists rarely provided treatment to the beneficiaries at any follow-up visits
pursuant to a physical therapy treatment plan. Many of the beneficiaries referred to RSG, Rehab

Dynamics, and Innovation received only massage and acupuncture at the variows clinics, which

| are services that Respondent knew are not covered by Medicare. Respondent also knew that the

massage and acupuncture performed at RSG, Rehab Dynamics, and Innovation were provided by
individuals not licensed to provide physical therapy. The unlicensed individuals were provided
by the same outside companies that referred Medicare beneficiaries to R8G, Rehab Dynamics,
and Innovation in exchange for kickbacks.

D.  Respondent submitted and knew that others submitted false information

|| regarding physical therapy claims to Accubill Medical Billing Services. gpmiﬁéaﬂ}r, Respondent
submitted claims for reimbursemont of physical therapy services for beneficiaries despite the fact

|| that the beneficiaries received other non-reimbursable services, such as massage and acupunciure,

10
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| Respondent submitied the beneficiaries’ names, identification numbers, and other patient

| information, as well as the names and provider numbers of physical therapists who purportedly

performed physical therapy services for the beneficiaries. Respondent also prepared and

I| submitted falsified records that made it appear the beneficiaries had received physical therapy
treatments from physical therapists hired by RSG, Rehab Dynamies, and Innovation, with the

intent that Accubill would use the information to submit false and fraudulent claims to Medicare

on behalf of R8G, Rehab Dynamies, and Innovation. Specifically, Respondent and his co-

| defendants prepared fraudulent documentation that was provided to Accubill falsely claiming that
physical therapists were providing medically necessary physical therapy treatment when, in fact,

| unficensed individuals were often providing acupuncture and massage services that are not

covered by Medicare, Respondent also prepared fraudulent documentation that was provided by
Acpubill falsely claiming that the physical therapists had treated patients they had not actually
treated, including treatment purportediy occﬁrriﬁg- at times when the physical therapists were
working at other companies or were out of the country,

E.  Between March 2008 and January 2014, Respondent offered and paid kickbacks

| to Glory Rehab, Hong's Medical Management, E.X. Medical, and New Hope in exchange for the
| referral of Medicare beneficiaries and for the elinics to provide services uncovered by Medicare,
including massages and acupuncture, Respondent and his co-defendants paid approximately fifty-

| five percent of the Medicare payments received to owners or directors of these ontside companies

for the referral of the beneficiaries who purportedly received physical therapy services,
Respondent knew it was illegal to offer or pay such payments in exchange for the referral of
patients for services paid by Medicare,

F.  RSG, Rehab Dynamics, and Innovation submitted approximately
$15,295,460.00 in false and fraudulent claims to Medicare between March 2008 and January
2014. As a result, Medicare paid-approximately $7,896,007.00 to satisfy these claims. During
this time period, RSG, Rehab Dynamics, and Innovation paid approximately $3,000,000.00 to
outside companies for the referral of Medicare beneficiaries.

i
H

(DANNIEL E, GOYENA, P.T.A.) ACCUSATION NO. 720*2-91?#00980?




ot
<

11

i

whether proven individually, jointly, or in any combination thersof, constitute the commission of |

19.  On December 17, 2015, Respondent pled guilty to violating United States Code, title
18, Section 1347, subdivision (a), subsection (2), and United Siates Code, title 42, Section 1320a-
7b, subdivision (b), subsection (2). Respondent was sentenced in federal court on December 19,
2016. However, Respondent did not report his eriminal convictions to the Baaﬁl within thirty

days of hig change of plea or sentencing in federal court,

(Criminal Convictions)

20. By reason of the facts set forth in paragraphs 15 through 19 above, Respondent’s
license is subject to disciplinary action under Section 2605, subdivision {d}, Section 2660,
subdivision (e), Section 2661, and Section 490 of the Code, a8 well as California Cﬁd& of
Regulations, title 16, Section 1399.20, in that Respondent has been convicted of crimes that are
substantially related to the qualifications, functions or duties of a physical therapist assistant.

21. Respondent’s acts and/or omissions ag set forth in paragraphs 15 through 19 above,
whether proven individually, jointly, or in any sombination thereof, constitute the conviotion of
crimes that are substantially refated to the qualifications, functions or duties of a physical thera_p-ist.f
ugsistant pursuant to Section 2605, subdivision (d), Section 2660, subdivision (¢}, Section 2661,

and Section 490 of the Code, as well as California Code of Regulations, title 16, Section 1399.20.

(Dishonest, Frandulent or Corrupt Acts)

22, By reasc;fa of the facts set forth in paragraphs 15 through 19 above, Respondent’s
license is subject to disciplinary action under Section 2605, subdivision (d), and Section 2660,
subdivision (§) of the Code, as well as California Code of Regulations, title 16, Section 1399.20,
in that Respondent has committed fraudulent, dishonest, or corrupt acts that are substantially
related to the qualifications, functions, or duties of a physical therapist assistant.

23.  Respondent’s acts and/or omissions as set forth in paragraphs 15 through 19 above,

fraudulent, dishonest, or corrupt acts that are substantially related to the qualifications, functions,
or duties of a physical therapist assistant pursuant to Section 2605, subdivision (d}, and Section

12
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|| subdivisions (a), {¢) and (§) of the Code, as well as California Code of Regulations, title 16,

i functions or duties of a physical therapist assistant, failed to promptly notify the Board of his
crimina! convictions within thirty days, and committed fraudulent, dishonest, or corrupt acts that

| are substantially refated to the quafifications, functions, or duties of a physical therapist assistant,

| assistant, failure to promptly notify the Board of criminal convictions within thirty days, and

2660, subdivision () of the Code, as well as California Code of Regulations, titie 16, Section
1399.20.

{Unprofessional Conduct)

24, By reason of the facts set forth in paragraphs 13 through 19 above, Respondent’s

license is subject to disciplinary action under Section 2603, subdivision (d), and Section 2660,

Section 1399.20 and California Code of Reg%ﬂatiens, title 16, Section 1399.24, subdivision (d), in

that Respondent has been convicted of crimes that are substantially related to the gualifications,

25.  Respondent’s acts and/or omissions as set forth in paragraphs 15 through 19 above,
whether proven individually, jointly, or in any combination thereof, constitute convistion of

crimes that are substantially related to the -qua]iﬁ-caiimns; functions or duties of a physical therapist

- commission of fraudulent, dishonest, or corrupt acts that are subﬁanﬁaﬂy related to the

- qualifications, functions, or duties of a physical therapist assistant putsuant to Section 2603,

Code of Regulations, title 16, Section 1399.20 and California Code of Regulations, title 16,
| Section 1399.24, subdivision (d).

26. To determine the depree of discipline, if any, to be imposed on Respondent,
Complainant alleges that on or about January 13, 20135, in a prior action, the Phiysical Therapy
Board of California issued Citation Number 14-15-0066 to Respondent for his failure to notify the
Board of a change of address within thirty days in accordance with Section 136 of the Code, as
wel as California Code of Regulations, title 16, seetion 13 98.{‘5, subdivisions {a) and (b).
| "

13
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| Réspcndem was ordered 1o pay a fine of on¢ hundred dollars within thirty days 1o the Board, That
Citation is now final and is incorporated by reference as if fully set forth, |
PRAYER
WHEREFORE, Complainant requests that a hearing be held on the matters herein alleged,

T —

and that following the hearing, the Physical Therapy Board of California issue a d&sisien:

1. Revoking or suspending Physical Therapist Assistant License Number PTA 8938,
issued to Danniel E, Goyena, P.T.A.

2. Ordering Damniel E, Goyena, P.T.A. to pay the Physical Therapy Board of California
the reasonable costs of the investigation and enforcement of this cage, pursuant to Business and

Professions I(Zode section 2661.5;

I 3, Ifplaced on probation, ordering him to pay the costs of probation monitoring; and,

4. Taking such other and firther action as deemed necessary and proper,

I paren: Yo D ot -q**“xw '
e JABORKAIEER

Executtve Officer

Physical Therapy Board of California

Department of Consumer Affairs

State of California

Complainary

| LA2017504950
2323756 doc
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BEFORETHE -
PHYSICAL THEBAPY BOARD OF CALIFORNIA

OF CONSUMER AFFAIRS

STATE OF CALIFORNIA

In the Matier of the Accusation
Against

DANNIEL E, GOYENA
11662 Carmenita Road, Apt B
Whiitler, CA 90605

Physical Therapy Assistant
License No. 8938

Ruspondent,

Case #: 720 2017 000807

The attached Stipulated Burrender of License and Order is hereby adopted by the Physical
Therapy Board of California, Department of Consumer Affalrs, as its Decision in this matter,

This Decision shall become effective on :ﬁa&\l \,{ AY \ 2017

Itisso ORDERED on JU€ 45 AOIT

S M Yy ?}ww 3&% ,
ALICTA RABENA-AMEN, VICE- PRESIDENT
FOR THE PHYSICAL THERAPY BOARD OF
CALIFORNIA, DEPARTMENT OB

CONSUMER AFFAIRS
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X AVIER BECERRA

Attorney General of California

JuDITH T. ALVARADO

Supervising Deputy Attorney General

NicHoLas B.C. SCHULTZ

Deputy Attorney General

State Bar No. 302151
California Department of Justice
300 South Spring Street, Suite 1702
Los Angeles, California 90013
Telephone; (213) 897-6564
Facsimiile: (213) 897-9395

Attorneys for Complainant

BEFORE THE
PHYSICAL THERAPY BOARD OF CALIFORNIA
DEPARTMENT OF CONSUMER AFFAIRS
STATE OF CALIFORNIA

In the Matter of the Accusation Against: Case No. 720-2017-000807

DANNIEL E. GOYENA, P.T.A.
11662 Carmenita Road, Apt. E
Whittier, California 90605 _ STIPULATED SURRENDER OF
: LICENSE AND ORDER

Physical Therapist Assistant License No. 8938,

Respondent.

|

and has chosen not to exercise his right to be represented by counsel.

IT IS HEREBY STIPULATED AND AGREED by and between the parties to the above-

entitled proceedings that the following matters are true:
PARTIES

1. Jason Kaiser (Complainant) is the Executive Officer of the Physical Therapy Board of
California, Department of Constumer Affairs (Board). He brought this action solely in his official
capacity and is represented in this matter by Xavier Becerra, Attorney General of the State of
California, by Nicholaé B.C. Schultz, Deputy Attorney General.

2. Damniel E, (Goyena, P.T.A. (Respondent) is representing himself in this proceeding

‘ 3. Onor about February 19, 2009, the Board issued Physical Therapist Assistant License
Number 8938 to Respondent. The Physical Therapist Assistant License was in full force
i
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| Assistant License. Respondent hereby surrenders his Physical Therapist Assistant License

.and eﬁect at all times relevant to the charges brought herein and will expire on July 31, 201 8;
unless renewed.
JURISi)ICTION

4. Accusation No. 720-2017-000807 was filed before the Physical Therapy Board of
California and is currently pending against Respondent. The Accusation and all other statutorily
required documents were properly served on Respondent. A copy of Accusatioﬁ No. 720-2017-
000807 is attached as Exhibit A and incorporated by reference.

ADVISEMENT AND WAIVERS

/5. Respondent has carefully read and understands the charges and allegations in
Accusation No, 720-2017-000807. Respondent also has carefully read and understands the
effects of this Stipulated Surrender of License and Order.

6.  Respondent is fully awére of his legal rights in this matter, including the right to a
hearing on the charges and allegations in the Accusation; the right to be represented by counsel, at
his own expense; the right to confront and cross-examine the witnesses against him; the right to
bresent evidence and to testify on his own behalf; the right to the issuance of subpoenas to compel
the attendance of witnesses and the production of documents; the right to reconsideration and
court review of an adverse decision; and all other rights accorded by the California
Administrative Procedure Act and other applicable laws.

7.  Respondent voluntarily, knowingly, and intelligently waives and gives up each and
every right set forth above.

| CULPABILITY

8.  Respondent admits the truth of each and every charge and allegation in Accusation
No. 720-2017-000807, and he agrees that cause exists for discipline of his Physical Therapist

Number 8938 for the Board’s formal acceptance.
9. Respondent understands that by signing this stipulation, he enables the Board to issue
an order accepting the surrender of his Physical Therapist Assistant License without further

process.

2
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RESERVATION

10. The admissions made by Respondent ‘herein are only for the purposes of this
proceeding, or any other proceedings in which the Physical Therapy Board of California or other
professional licensing agency is involved, and shall not be admissible in any other criminal or
éivil proceeding.

CONTIN GENCY
11. This stipulaﬁon shall be subject to approval by the Board. Respondent understands

and agrees that counsel for Complainant and the staff of the Board may communicate directly

- with the Board regarding this stipulation and surrender, without notice to or participation by

Respondent. By signing the stipulation, Respondent understands and agrees that he may not

withdraw his agreement or seek to rescind the stipulation prior to the time the Board considers

and acts upon it. If the Board fails to adopt this stipulation as its Decision and Order, then the
Stipulated Surrender and Disciplinary Order shall be of no force or effect, except for this
paragraph, it shall be inadmissible in any legal action between the parties, and the Board shall not
be disqualified from further action by having considered ‘phis matter. |

12. The parties understand and agree that Portable Document Format (PDF) and facsimile
copies of this Stipulated Surrender of License and Order, including Portable Document Format
(PDF) and facsimile signatures thereto, shall have the same force and effect as the originals,

13. In consideration of the foregoing admissions-and stipulétions, the parties agree that
the Board may, without further notice or formal proceeding, issue and enter the following Order:

ORDER

IT IS HEREBY ORDERED that Physical Therapist Assistant License Number 8938 issued
to Respondent is surrendered and accepted by the Physical Therapy Board of California.

1. The surrender of Respondent’s Physical Therapist Assistant License and the
acceptance of the surrendered license by the Board shall constitute the imposition of discipline
against Respondent. This stipulation constitutes a record of the discipline and shall become a part
of Respondent’s license history with the Physical Therapy Board of California. |
i
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‘2. Respondent shall lose all rights and privileges as a Physical Therapist Assistant in the
State of California as of the effective date of the Board’s Decision and Order.

3. Respondent shall cause to be delivered to the Board his pocket Jicense and, if one was
issued, his wall certificate on or before. the effective date of the Decision and Order.

4,  If Respondent ever files an application for licensure or a petition for reinstatement in
the Stgte of California, the Board shall treat it as a petition for reinstatement. Respondent must
comply with all the laws, regulations and procedures for reinstatement of a revoked license in
effect at the time the petition is filed, and all of the charges and allegations contained in |
Accusation No. 720-2017-000807, separately and severally, shall be deemed to be true, correct
and admitted by Respondent when the Board determines whether to grant or deny the petition.

5.  If Respondent should ever apply or reapply for a new license or certification, or
petition for reinstatement of a licenée, by any other health care licensing agency in the State of
California, all of the charges and allegations contained m Accusation No. 720-2017-0060807 shall
be deemed to be true, correct, and admitted by Respondent for the purpose of any Statement of
Issues or any other proceeding seeking to deny or restrict licensure. |

6.  Respondent shall pay the Board its costs of investigation and enforcement in the
amount of $2,142.50 prior to applying for 2 new or reinstated license.

ACCEPTANCE

I have caréfully read the Stipulated Surrender of License and Order. 1 understand the
stipulation and the effect it will have on my Physical Therapy Assistant. I enter into this
Stipulated Surrender of License and Oxder voluntarily, knowingly, and intelligently, and agree to
be bound by the Decision and Order of the Physical Therapy Board of California.

DANNIEL E. GOYENA, P.T.A. J
Respondent ‘ '

i
i
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ENDORSEMENT

The foregoing Stipulated Surrender of License and Order is hereby respectfully submitted

for consideration by the Physical Therapy Board of California of the Department of Consumer

Affairs.

Dated: May 25, 2017

LA2017504950
62326116,docx

Respeetfully submitted,

XAVIER BECERRA

Attorney General of California
JuDITH T. ALVARADO

Supervising Deputy Attorney General

NICHOLAS B.C. SCHULTZ
Deputy Attorney General
Attorneys for Complainant
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XAVIER BECERRA
Attorney General of California

JupITH T, ALVARADO
Supervising Deputy Attorney General
NicHOLAS B.C, SCHULTZ
Deputy Attorney General
State Bar No. 302151

California Department of Justice

300 South Spring Street, Suite 1702

Los Angeles, California 90013

Telephone: (213) 897-6564

Facsimile; (213) 897-9395
Attorneys for Complainant

BEFORE THF.
PHYSICAL THERAPY BOARD OF CALIFORNIA
DEPARTMENT OF CONSUMER AFFAIRS
STATE OF CALIFORNIA
In the Mattér of the Accusation Apgainst: Case No, 720-2017-000807
DANNIEL E, GOYENA, P.T.A. |
11662 Carmenita Road, Apt. E
Whittier, California 90605 : ACCUSATION
Physical Therapist Assistant License No. 8938,
Respondent.
Complainant alleges:

|

J

| _ ' ARTIES
I 1. Jason Kaiser (Complainant) brings this Accusation solely in his official capacity as
the Executive Officer of the Physical Therapy Board of California, Department of Consumer
Affairs (Board).

2. On or about February 19, 2009, the Physical Therapy Board of California issued
Physical Therapist Assistant License Number 8938 to Danniel E. Goyena, P.T.A. (Respondent).
J The Physical Therapist Assistant License was in full force and effect at all times relevant to the
charges brought herein and will expire on July 31, 2018, uniess rencwed.

JURISDICTION

3. This Accusation is brought before the Board under the authority of the following
Jaws. All section references are to the Business and Professions Code unless otherwise indicated.

1
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4. Section 2602.1 of the Code states: _

“Protection of the public shall be the highest priority for the Physical Therapy Board of
California in exercising its licensing, regulatory, and disciplinary functions. Whenever the
protection of the public s inconsistent with other'interests sought to be promoted, the protection
of the public shall be paramount.” |

5. Section 2605 of the Code states:

“The board shall do all of the following:

. “(a) Evaluate the qualifications of applicants for licensure.

“(b) Provide for the examinations of physiocal therapists and physical therapist assistants and
establish a passing score for each examination. _

“(c) Issue all licenses for the practice of physical therapy in California. Except as otherwise
required by the director pursuant to Section 164, the license issued by the board shall descriﬁe the
licensec as a ‘physical therapist’ or ‘physical therapist assistant’ licensed by the Physical Therapy
Board of California, |

“(d) Suspend and revoke licenses and otherwise enforce the provisions of this chapter,

6.  Section 2660 of the Code states;

“Unprofessional conduct constitutes grounds for citation, discipline, denial of a licenge, or
issuance of a probationary license. The board may, after the conduct of appropriate proceedings
under the Administrative Procedure Act (Chapter 4.5 (commencing with Section 11400) of Part 1-
of Division 3 of Title 2 of the Government Code), issue a citation, impose discipline, deny a
license, suspend for not more than 12 months, or revoke, or impose probationary conditions upon
any ticense issued under this chapter for unprofessional conduct that in(;ludes, in addition to other
provisions of this chapter, but s not limited to, the following:

“(a) Violating or attempting to violate, directly or indirectly, assisting in or abetting the
violation of, or conspiring to violate any provision of this chapter, any regulations duly adopted
under this chapter, or the Medical Practice Act (Chapter 5 (commencing with Section 2000)).

1]
.
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|

“(e) Conviction of a crime that substantially relates to the qualifications, functions, or duties

of a physical thetapist or physical therapist assistant, The record of conviction or a certified copy

" thereof shall be conclusive evidence of that conviction.

[
.

(i) The commission of any fraudulent, dishonest, or corrupt act that is substantially related
to the qualifications, functions, or duties of a physical therapist or physical therapist assistant,

L ”
D]

7. Section 2661 of the Code states:

| “A plea or verdict of guilty or & conviction following a plea of nolo contendere is deemed to
be a conviction within the meaning of this article. The board may order discipline of the licensee
in accordance with Section 2660 or the board may take action as authorized in Section 2660.2 on
an application when the time for appeal has elapsed, or the judgment of conviction has been
affirmed on appeal or when an order granting probation is made suspending the imposition of
sentence, irrespective of a subsequent order under Section 1203.4 of the Penal Code allowing that
person to withdraw his or her plea of guilty and to enter a plea of not guilty, or sefting aside the
verdict of guilty, or dismissing the accusation, information, or indictment. '

8.  Section 490 of the Code states:

“(a) In addition to any other action that a board is permitted to take against a licensee, a
board may suspend or revoke a license on the ground that the licensee has been convicted of a
crime, if the crime is substantially related to the qualiﬁcé’cions, functions, or duties of the business
or profession for which the license was issued,

“(b) Notwithstanding any other provision of law, a board may exercise any authority to
discipline a licensee for conviction of a crime that is independent of the authority granted‘ under
subdivision (&) only if the crime is substantially related to the qualifications, functions, or duties
of the business or profession for which the licensee’s license was 1ssued

“(¢) A conviction within the meaning of this section means a plea or Veld!(}t of guilty or a

conviction following a plea of nolo contendere. Any action that a board is permitted to take

following the establishment of a conviction may be taken when the time for appeal has elapsed, or

3
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the judgment of conviction has been affitmed on appeal, or when an order granting probation is
made suspending the imposition of sentence, irrespective of a subseqimnt order under the
provisions of Section 1203.4 of the Penal Code,

“(d) The Legislature hereby finds and declares that the application of this section has been
made unclear by the holding in Petropoulos v. Depariment of Real Estate (2006) 142 Cal.App 4th
554, and that the holding in that case has placed a significant number of statutes and regulations
in question, resulting in potential harm to the consumers of California from licensees who have
been convicted of crimes. Therefore, the Legislature finds and declares that this section
establishes an independent basis‘ for a board to impose discipline upon a licensee, and that the
amendments to this section made by Senate Bill 797 of the 2007-08 Regular Session do not
constitute a change to, but rather are declaratory of, existing law,”

9.  Section 493 of the Code states;

“Notwithstanding any other provision of law, in a proceeding conducted by a board within
the departiient pursuant to law to deny an application for a license or to suspend or revoke a
license or otherwise take disciplindry action against a person who holds a license, upon the
ground that the applicant or the licensee has been convicted of a crime substantially related to the
qualifications, functions, and duties of the licensee in question, the 1'eco£‘d of cohviction (;f the
crime shall be conclusive evidence of the fact that the conviction occurred, but only of that fact,
and the board may inquire into the circumstances surrounding the cornmission of the crime in
order-to fix the degree of discipline or to determine if the conviction is substantially related to the

qualifications, functions, and duties of the licensee in question.

10, California Code of Regulations, title 16, section 1399.20, states:

“For the purposes of denial, suspension or revocation of a license, pursuant to Division 1.5
(commencing with Section 475) of the code, a crime or act shali be considered to be substantially
related to the qualifications, fun.ctions or duties of a person holding a license under the Physical
Therapy Practice Act if to a substantial de.gree it evidences present or potential unfitness of a

person to perform the functions authorized by the license or approval in a manner consistent with

4
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the public health, safety or welfare, Such crimes or acts shall include but not be limited to the
! following:
! | “(a) Violating or attempting to violate, directly or iqdirectly, or assisting in or abetting the
violation of, or conspiring to violate any provision or term of the Physical Therapy Practice Act.

_ *(b) Conviction of a crime involving fiscal dishonesty arising out of or in connection with
‘\ the practice of physical therapy,

“(c) Violating or attempting to viclate any provision or term of the Medical Practice Act.”

11, California Code of Regtlldtions, title 16, section 1399.24, states:
P “In addition to the conduct described in Section 2660 of the Code, ‘unprofessional conduct’

also includes but is not limited to the following:
l “(d) Failure to report to the board within 30 days any of the following:

(1) The bringing of an indictment or information charging a felony against the

licensee.
|# (2) The arrest of the licehsse,

(3).The conviction of the licensee, inciuding any verdict of guilty or no contest, of

any felony or misdemeanor.

(14 ”
|

UNITED STATES CODE SECTIONS
12.  United States Code, title 18, Section 1347 states:

“(8) Whoever knowingly and willfully executes, or attempts to execute, a scheme or

artifice--

“(1) to defraud any health care benefit program; or

“(2) to obtain, by means of false or fraudulent pretenses, representations, or promises, any
of the money or property owned by, or under the custody or control of, any health care benefit
| program,
“in connection with the delivery of or payment for health care benefits, items, or services,

shall be fined under this title or imprisoned not more than 10 years or both, If the violation results

5
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in serious bodily injury (as defined in section 1365 of this title), such person shall be fined under
this title or imprisoned not mote than 20 years, or both; and if the violation results in death, such
person shall be fined under this title, or imprisoned for any term of yeats or for life, or both.

“(b) With respect to violations of this section, a petson need not have actual knowledge of
this section or specific intent to commit a violation of this section,”

13,  United States Code, title 42, Section 1320a~7h, subdivision (b), subsection (2) states:

“Whoever knowingly and willfully offers or pays any remuneration (including any
kickback, bribe, or rebate) directly or indirectly, overtly or covertly, in cash or in kind to any
person to induce such person--

*“(A) to refer an individual to a person for the furnishing or arranging for the furnishing of
any item or service for which payment may be made in whole ot in part under a Federal health
care program, ot

13
'

“shall be guilty of a felony and upon conviction thereof, shall be fined not moye than

$25,000 or imprisoned for not more than five years, ot both.”

COST RECOVERY
14, Section 2661.5 of the Code states: |

“(a) In any order issued in resolution of a disciplinary proceeding before the board, the

“board may request the administrative law judge to direct any licensee found guilty of

unp;rofessional conduct to pay to the board a sum not to exceed the actual and reagonable costs of
the investigation and prosecutioh of the case.

“(b) The costs to be assessed shall be fixed by the administrative law judge and shall not in
any event be increased by the board. When the board does not adopt a proposed decision and
remands the case to an administrative law judge, the administrative law judge shall not increase
the amount of the assessed costs specified in the proposed decision.

“(c} When the payment directed in an order for payment of costs is not made by the
licensee, the board may enforce the order of payment by bringing an action in any appropriate

i
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violation of United States Cade, title 18, Section 1347, subdivision (&), subsection (2), and

coutt. This right of enforcement shall be in addition o any other rights the board may have as to
any licensee directed to pay costs, .

“(d) In any judicial action for the recovery of costs, proof of the board's detision shall be
conclusive proof of the validity of the ordef‘ of payment and the terms for payment.

“(e) (1) Except as provided in paragraph (2), the board shall not renew or reinstaté the
license or approval of any person who has failed to pay all of the costs ordered under this section.

*(2) Notwithstanding paragraph (1), the board ma;y, in its discretion, conditionally renew or
reinstate for a maximum of one year the license or approval of any person who demonstrates
financial hardship and who enters into a formal agreement with the board to reimburse the board
within that one year period for those unpaid costs.

“(f) All costs recovered under this section shall be deposited in the Physical Therapy Fund
as a reimbursement in either the fiscal year in which the coats are actually recovered or the
previous fiscal year, as the board may direct,”

FACTUAL SUMMARY

15, OnDecember 17, 2015, in the case entitled the United States of America v, Danniel

Goyena, case number 2:15-cr-00576-DOC-2, in the United States District Coutt for the Central

District of California, Respondent entered a plea of guilty to Health Care Fraud, a felony, in

subdivision (b). Respondent also entered a plea of guilty to Illegal Remunerations for Health
Care Referrals, a felony, in violation of United States Code, title 42, Section 1320a-7b,
subdivision (b), subsection (2),

16.  Prior to his change of plea and sentencing, Respondent entered into and executed a
plea agreement with the United States Attorney’s Office wherein Respondent agreed to the factual
basis described in paragraph 18 below, On December 19, 2016, Respondent was sentenced based
on his guilty pleas to violating United States Code, title 18, Sectior‘x 1347, subdivision (a),
subsection (2), and United States Code, title 42, Section 1320a-7b, subdivision (b), subsection (2).
The remaining charges filed against Regpon_dent were dismissed putsuant to the plea agreement.

As part of his plea agreement with the United States Attorney’s Office, Respondent expressly

7
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agreed to the revocation of his physical therapist assistant license resulting in his loss of all rights
and privileges as a licensed physical therapist assistant in California, Furthermore, Respondent
agreed that he would not apply for licensute or petition for reinstatement of his revoked physical
therapist assistant license for at least five years from the effective date of the license revocation,
17. In accordance with the plea agreement, Respondent was sentenced to fifty-one

months in th.e custody of the federal Burean of Prisons with an additional order that Respondent
surrender himself to the Bureau of Prisons before 12:00 p.m. on January 3, 2017 Respondent
was also sentenced to three years of supervised release upon his release from imprisonment with
the following terms and cdnditions: |

A, Payment of $7,896,007.00 in restitution for joint and several liability of the
health care fraud scheme perpetrated by Respondent and his co-defendants;

B. A requirement that Respondent submit his person and property to search and

Seizﬁre at any time of the day or night by any law enforcement officer wifh ot without a warran{

and with or without reasonable or probable cause;

C. A reciuirement that Respondent report to the United States Probation Office
within seventy-two hours of his release from custody;

D. A requirement that Respondent report in person directly to the Court within 21
days of his release from custody, at a date and time to be set by the United States Probation
Office, and thereafter report in person to the Court no more than eight times duting his first year
of supervised release;

E. A requirement that Respondent not possess, have under his control, or have
dccess to any firearm, explosive device, or other dangerous weapon;

F. A requirement that Respondent comply with the rules and regulations of the
United States Probation Office, General Ol'der 05-02, and General Order 01-05, including the
three special conditions delineated in General Order 01-035;

G. A requirement that Respondellt not commit any violation of local, state or

federal law or ordinance;

i
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H A requiremeht that Respondent pay the special assessment and restitution
amounts during the period of community supervision;

L A requirement that Respondent comply with the immigration rules and
regulations of the United States, and if deported from this country, either voluntarily or
involuntarily, not reenter the United States illegally;

L. A requircmént that Respondent cooperate in the collection of 2 DNA sample;

K. A requirement that Respondent not obtain or possess any driver’s license,
Social Security number, birth certificate, passport or any other form of identification in any naine,
other than the defendant’s true legal name, and not use any name other than his true legal name
without prior written approval of the Probation Officer; and

L.  Arequirement that Respondent apply all monies received from income tax
refunds, lottery winnings, inheritance, judgments, and any anticipated or unexpected financial
gains to the outstanding court-ordered financial obligation.

18, The circumstances leading to Respondent’s ériminal convictions are as follows;

A, Atvarious times between March 2008 and January 2014, Respondent owned

and operated RSG Rehab, Inc. (RSG), Rehab Dynamics, Inc, (Rehab Dynamics), and Innovation

Physical Therapy, Inc. {Innovation) with J.S., a co-defendant working as a licensed physical
therapist. RSG, Rehab Dynamics and Innovation were California corporations operating in Los
Angeles and Orange céunties. Respondent enrolled RSG as a provider with Medicare,' a federal
health care benefit program that provides reimbursement for medically necessary services to
persons aged sixty-five years and older, as well as for certain digabled persons. Respondent's .
application for enrollment as a Medicare provider enabled RSG, Rehab Dynamics, and Innovation
to submit reimbursement claims to Medicare. As part of the Medicare provider application,
Respondent certified that he would submit truthful and accurate claims and that he would know

and abide by all Medicare regulations,

! Medicare Is administered by the Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services, a federal agency
under the United States Departinent of Health and Human Services. Individuals that qualify for Medicare
benefits are referred to as “beneficiaries,” whereas physicians and other health care providers that are
reimbursed by Medicare are referred to as “providers,”

9
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B.  Although Respondent initially believed that RSG would conduct business in &
lawfu! manner, he became aware that RSG, Rehab Dynamics and Innovation were being used to
commit fraud against Medicate through the submission of fraudulént claims for physical therapy
that often never occuﬁ'ed by his co-defendants. Respondent learned of this fraudulent activity
approximétely one year after he opened the éompany with 1.S. At that point, Respondent became
a full and willing participant in the scheme to defraud the Medicare health care benefit program as
to material matters in connection with the delivery of and payment for health care benefits, items
and services. Respondent also acted to obtained money from Medicare by means of material faise |
and fraudulent pretenses, misrepresentations, and concealment of material facts in connection
with the delivery of and payment for health care services.

C. - Respondent, along with his co-defendants, paid illegal kickbacks out of
business bank accounts for RSG, Rehab Dynamics, and Innovation to several outside companies
in exéhange for the referral of Medicare beneficiaries to RSG, Rehab Dynamics, and Innovation
for physical therapy that the patients often never received. Respondent and J.S. then hired
licensed physical therapists to provide initial evaluations and re-evaluations of the beneficiaries at
various olinics. However, Respondent knew that some of these evaluations did not take place and
that the physical therapists rarely provided treatment to the beneficiaries at any follow-up visits
pursuant to a physical therapy treatment plan, Many of the beneficiaries referred to RSG, Rehab
Dynamics, and Innovation received only massage and acupuncturé at the various clinics, which

are services that Respondent knew are not covered by Medicare. Respondent also knew that the

massage and acupunctute performed at RSG, Rehab Dynamics, and Innovation were provided by

individuals not licensed to provide physical therapy. The unlicensed individuals were provided
by the same outside companies that referred Medicare beneficiaries to RSG, Rehab Dynamics,
and Innovation in exchange for kickbacks.

D. Respondent submitted and knew that others submitted false information

regarding physical therapy claims to Accubill Medical Billing Services. Speciﬁéally, Respondent

submitted claims for reimbursement of physical therapy services for beneficiaries despite the fact

that the beneficiaries received other non-reimbursable services, such as massage and acupuncture,

10
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Respondent submitted the beneficiaries’ names, identification numbexs, and other patient
information, as well as the names and provider numbers of physical therapists who purportedly
performed physical therapy services for the beneficiaries. Respondent also prepared and

submitted falsified records that made it appear the beneficiaries had received physical therapy

treatments from physical therapists hived by RSG, Rehab Dynamics, and Innovation, with the

intent that Accubill would use the information to submit false and fravdulent claims to Medicare
on behalf of RSG, Rehab Dynamics, and Innovation. Specifically, Respondent and his co-
defendants prepared fraudulent documentation that was provided to Accubill faléely.claiming that
physical therapists were providing medically necessary physical therapy treatment when, in fact,
unlicensed individuals were often providing acupuncture and massage services that are not
coverad by Medicare, Regpondent also prepared fraudulent docpinentation that was provided by
Accubill falsely olaiming that the physical tllefapists had treated patients they had not actually
treated, including treatment purportedly occurring at times when the physical therapists were
working at other companies or were out of the country. |

E. 'Between March 2008 and January 2014, Respondent offered and paid kickbacks
to Glory Rehab, Hong's Medical Management, E.K.. Medical, and New Hope in exchange for the
referral of Medicare beneficiaries and for the clinics to providé services uncovered by Medicare,
including massages and acupunctﬁre. Respondent and his co-defendants paid approximately fifty-
five percent of the Medicare payments received to owners or directors of these outside companies

for the referral of the beneficiaries who purportedly received physical therapy services,

-Respondent knew it was illegal to offer or pay such paymenti; in exchange for the referral of

patients for services paid by Medicare. |

F.  RSG, Rehab Dynamics, and Innovation submitted approximately
$15,295,460.00 in false and fraudulen‘g claims to Medicare between March 2008 and January
2014. As aresult, Medicare paid approximately $7,896,007.00 to satisfy these claims, During
this time period, RSG, Rehab Dynamics, and Innovation paid approximately $3,000,000.00 to
outside companies for the referral of Medicare beneficiaries.

I
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19.  On December 17, 2015, Respondent pled guilty to violating United States Code, title
18, Section 1347, subdivision (a), subsection (2}, and United States Code, title 42, Section 1320a-

_7b, subdivision (b), subsection (2). Respondent was sentenced in federal court on December 19,

2016. However, Respondent did not report his criminal convictions to the Board within thitty
days of his change of plea or sentencing in federal court. |
FIRST CAUSE FOR DISCIPLINE
| ‘(Criminal Convictions)
20. By reason of the facts set forth in paragraphs 15 through 19 above, Respondent’s
Jicense is subject to disciplinary action under Section 2605, subdivision (d), Section 2660,
subdivision (), Section 2661, and Section 490 of the Code, as well as California Code of

Regulations, title 16, Section 1399,20, in that Respondent has been convicted of crimes that are

- gubstantiaily related to the qualifications, functions or duties of a physical therapist assistant.

21, Respondent’s acts and/or omissions as set forth in paragraphs 15 through 19 above,
whether proven individually, jointly, or in any combination thereof, constitute the convictidn of
crimes that are substantially related to the qualifications, functions or duties of a physical therapist
assistant pursuant to Section 2605, subdivision (d), Section 2660, subdivision (e), Section 2661,
and Section 490 of the Code, as well as California Code of Regulations, title 16, Section 139920,

SECOND CAUSE FOR DISCIPLINE

(Dishonest, Fraudulent or Corrupt Acts)

22. Bj! reason of the facts set forth in paragraphs 15 through 19 above, Respondent’s
license is subject to disciplinary action under Section 2605, subdivision (d), and Section 2660,
subdivision (j) of the Code, as well as California Code of Regulations, title 16, Section 1399.20,
in that Respondent has committed fraudulent, dishonest, or corrupt acts that are substantially
related to the qualifications, functions, or duties of‘ a physical therapist assistant.

23, Respondent’s acts and/or omissic;ns as get forth in paragraphs 15 through 19 above,
whether proven individually, jointly, or in any combination thereof, constitute the commission of

frandulent, dishonest, or corrupt acts that are substantially related to the qualifications, functions, .

or duties of a physical therapist assistant pursuant to Section 2605, subdivision (d), and Section
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that Respondent has been convioted of crimes that are substantially related to the qualifications,

2660, subdivision (j) of the Code, as well as California Code of Regulations, title 16, Section
1399.20.

JTHIRD CAUSE FOR DISCIPLINE
(Unprofessional Conduct)

24. By reason of the facts set forth in paragraphs 15 through 19 above, Respondent’s
license is subject to disciplinary action under Section 2605, subdivision (d), and Section 2660,
subdivisions (a), (¢} and (j) of the Code, as well as California Code of Regulations, title 16,

Section 1399.20 and California Code of Regﬁiations, title 16, Section 1399.24, subdivision (d), in

functions or duties of a physical therapist assistant, failed to promptly notify the Board of his
criminal convictions within thirty days, and committed fraudulent, dishonest, or corrupt acts that
are substantially related to the qualifwations, functions, or duties of a physical therapist assistant,

25. Respondent’s acts and/or omissions as set forth in paragraphs 15 through 19 above,
whether proven individually, jointly, or in any combination thereof, constitute conviction of
crimes that are substantially related to the qualifications, fun_ctions or duties of a physical therapist
assistant, failure to promptly notify the Board of criminal convictions within thirty days, and
commission of fraudulent, dishonest, or corrupt acts that are substantially related o the
qualifications, functions, or duties of a physical therapist assistant pursuant to Section 2605,
subdivision (d), and Section 2660, subdivisions (a), (¢) and (j) of the Code, as well as California
Code of Regulations, title 16, Section 1399.20 and California Code of Rg:gulations,’ fitle 16,
Section 1399.24, subdivision (d). |

DISCIPLINE CONSIDERATIONS

26. To determine the degree of discipline, if any, to be imposed on .Respondent,
Compiainanlt alleges that on or about January 13, 2015, in a prior action, the Physical Therapy
Board of California issued Citation Number 14-15-0066 to Respondent for his failure to notify the
Board of a change of address within thirt& days in accordance with Section 136 of the Code, as
well as California Code of Regulations, title 16, section 1398.6, subdivisions (a) and (b).
i
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Respondent was ordered to pay & fine of one hundred dollars within thirty days to the Board. That
Citation is now final and is incorporated by reference as if fully set forth.,

:t WHEREFORE, Complainant requests that a hearing be held on the matters herein alleged,
and that following the hearing, the Physical Therapy Board of California issue a decision:

1. Revoking or snspending Physical Therapist Assistant License Number PTA 8938,

R~

' issued to Danniel E. Goyena, P.T.A.

2. Ordering Danniel E. Goyena, P.T.A. to pay the Physical Therapy Board of California
| the reasonable costs of the investigation and enforcement of this case, parsuant to Business and

Professions Code section 2661.5;
3. Ifplaced on probation, ordering him to pay the costs of probation monitoring; and,

4.  Taking such other and further action as desmed necessary and proper.

DATED: W\oz%;s . Nt %—B%AV

FK-AIRER
Executive Officer
Physical Thetapy Board of California
Department of Consumer Affairs
State of California
Complainant

LA2017504950
62323756.doc
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